

Mitsubishi Programmable Controller

MELSEG L series

MELSEC-L LD77MH Simple Motion Module Quick Start Guide



● SAFETY PRECAUTIONS ●

(Please read these instructions before using this equipment.)

Before using this product, please read this manual and the relevant manuals introduced in this manual carefully and pay full attention to safety to handle the product correctly.

Refer to the Users manual of the CPU module to use for a description of the PLC system safety precautions.

In this manual, the safety instructions are ranked as "DANGER" and "CAUTION".



Indicates that incorrect handling may cause hazardous conditions, resulting in death or severe injury.

Indicates that incorrect handling may cause hazardous conditions, resulting in medium or slight personal injury or physical damage.

Depending on circumstances, procedures indicated by A CAUTION may also be linked to serious results.

In any case, it is important to follow the directions for usage.

Please save this manual to make it accessible when required and always forward it to the end user.

For Safe Operations

1. Prevention of electric shocks

▲DANGER

- Never open the front case or terminal covers while the power is ON or the unit is running, as this may lead to electric shocks.
- Never run the unit with the front case or terminal cover removed. The high voltage terminal and charged sections will be exposed and may lead to electric shocks.
- Never open the front case or terminal cover at times other than wiring work or periodic inspections even if the power is OFF. The insides of the module and servo amplifier are charged and may lead to electric shocks.
- Completely turn off the externally supplied power used in the system before mounting or removing the module, performing wiring work, or inspections. Failing to do so may lead to electric shocks.
- When performing wiring work or inspections, turn the power OFF, wait at least ten minutes, and then check the voltage with a tester, etc. Failing to do so may lead to electric shocks.
- Be sure to ground the module, servo amplifier and servomotor (Ground resistance: 100 Ω or less). Do not ground commonly with other devices.
- The wiring work and inspections must be done by a qualified technician.
- Wire the units after installing the module, servo amplifier and servomotor. Failing to do so may lead to electric shocks or damage.
- Never operate the switches with wet hands, as this may lead to electric shocks.
- Do not damage, apply excessive stress, place heavy things on or sandwich the cables, as this may lead to electric shocks.
- Do not touch the module, servo amplifier, servomotor connector or terminal blocks while the power is ON, as this may lead to electric shocks.
- Do not touch the built-in power supply, built-in grounding or signal wires of the module and servo amplifier, as this may lead to electric shocks.

2. For fire prevention

- Install the module, servo amplifier, servomotor and regenerative resistor on incombustible. Installing them directly or close to combustibles will lead to fire.
- If a fault occurs in the module or servo amplifier, shut the power OFF at the servo amplifier's power source. If a large current continues to flow, fire may occur.
- When using a regenerative resistor, shut the power OFF with an error signal. The regenerative resistor may abnormally overheat due to a fault in the regenerative transistor, etc., and may lead to fire.
- Always take heat measures such as flame proofing for the inside of the control panel where the servo amplifier or regenerative resistor is installed and for the wires used. Failing to do so may lead to fire.
- Do not damage, apply excessive stress, place heavy things on or sandwich the cables, as this may lead to fire.

3. For injury prevention

- Do not apply a voltage other than that specified in the instruction manual on any terminal.
 Doing so may lead to destruction or damage.
- Do not mistake the terminal connections, as this may lead to destruction or damage.
- Do not mistake the polarity (+ /), as this may lead to destruction or damage.
- Do not touch the heat radiating fins of module or servo amplifier, regenerative resistor and servomotor, etc., while the power is ON and for a short time after the power is turned OFF. In this timing, these parts become very hot and may lead to burns.
- Always turn the power OFF before touching the servomotor shaft or coupled machines, as these parts may lead to injuries.
- Do not go near the machine during test operations or during operations such as teaching. Doing so may lead to injuries.

4. Various precautions

Strictly observe the following precautions. Mistaken handling of the unit may lead to faults, injuries or electric shocks.

(1) System structure

- Always install a leakage breaker on the module and servo amplifier power source.
- If installation of an electromagnetic contactor for power shut off during an error, etc., is specified in the instruction manual for the servo amplifier, etc., always install the electromagnetic contactor.
- Install the emergency stop circuit externally so that the operation can be stopped immediately and the power shut off.
- Use the module, servo amplifier, servomotor and regenerative resistor with the correct combinations listed in the instruction manual. Other combinations may lead to fire or faults.
- Use the CPU module and Simple Motion module with the correct combinations listed in the instruction manual. Other combinations may lead to faults.
- If safety standards (ex., robot safety rules, etc.,) apply to the system using the module, servo amplifier and servomotor, make sure that the safety standards are satisfied.
- Construct a safety circuit externally of the module or servo amplifier if the abnormal operation of the module or servo amplifier differ from the safety directive operation in the system.
- In systems where coasting of the servomotor will be a problem during the forced stop, emergency stop, servo OFF or power supply OFF, use dynamic brakes.
- Make sure that the system considers the coasting amount even when using dynamic brakes.
- In systems where perpendicular shaft dropping may be a problem during the forced stop, emergency stop, servo OFF or power supply OFF, use both dynamic brakes and electromagnetic brakes.
- The dynamic brakes must be used only on errors that cause the forced stop, emergency stop, or servo OFF. These brakes must not be used for normal braking.
- The brakes (electromagnetic brakes) assembled into the servomotor are for holding applications, and must not be used for normal braking.

- The system must have a mechanical allowance so that the machine itself can stop even if the stroke limits switch is passed through at the max. speed.
- Use wires and cables that have a wire diameter, heat resistance and bending resistance compatible with the system.
- Use wires and cables within the length of the range described in the instruction manual.
- The ratings and characteristics of the parts (other than module, servo amplifier and servomotor) used in a system must be compatible with the module, servo amplifier and servomotor.
- Install a cover on the shaft so that the rotary parts of the servomotor are not touched during operation.
- There may be some cases where holding by the electromagnetic brakes is not possible due to the life or mechanical structure (when the ball screw and servomotor are connected with a timing belt, etc.). Install a stopping device to ensure safety on the machine side.

(2) Parameter settings and programming

- Set the parameter values to those that are compatible with the module, servo amplifier, servomotor and regenerative resistor model and the system application. The protective functions may not function if the settings are incorrect.
- The regenerative resistor model and capacity parameters must be set to values that conform to the operation mode and servo amplifier. The protective functions may not function if the settings are incorrect.
- Set the mechanical brake output and dynamic brake output validity parameters to values that are compatible with the system application. The protective functions may not function if the settings are incorrect.
- Set the stroke limit input validity parameter to a value that is compatible with the system application. The protective functions may not function if the setting is incorrect.
- Set the servomotor encoder type (increment, absolute position type, etc.) parameter to a value that is compatible with the system application. The protective functions may not function if the setting is incorrect.
- Set the servomotor capacity and type (standard, low-inertia, flat, etc.) parameter to values that are compatible with the system application. The protective functions may not function if the settings are incorrect.
- Set the servo amplifier capacity and type parameters to values that are compatible with the system application. The protective functions may not function if the settings are incorrect.
- Use the program commands for the program with the conditions specified in the instruction manual.
- Set the sequence function program capacity setting, device capacity, latch validity range, I/O assignment setting, and validity of continuous operation during error detection to values that are compatible with the system application. The protective functions may not function if the settings are incorrect.

- Some devices used in the program have fixed applications, so use these with the conditions specified in the instruction manual.
- The input devices and data registers assigned to the link will hold the data previous to when communication is terminated by an error, etc. Thus, an error correspondence interlock program specified in the instruction manual must be used.
- Use the interlock program specified in the intelligent function module's instruction manual for the program corresponding to the intelligent function module.

(3) Transportation and installation

- Transport the product with the correct method according to the mass.
- Use the servomotor suspension bolts only for the transportation of the servomotor. Do not transport the servomotor with machine installed on it.
- Do not stack products past the limit.
- When transporting the module or servo amplifier, never hold the connected wires or cables.
- When transporting the servomotor, never hold the cables, shaft or detector.
- When transporting the module or servo amplifier, never hold the front case as it may fall off.
- When transporting, installing or removing the module or servo amplifier, never hold the edges.
- Install the unit according to the instruction manual in a place where the mass can be withstood.
- Do not get on or place heavy objects on the product.
- Always observe the installation direction.
- Keep the designated clearance between the module or servo amplifier and control panel inner surface or the module and servo amplifier, module or servo amplifier and other devices.
- Do not install or operate modules, servo amplifiers or servomotors that are damaged or that have missing parts.
- Do not block the intake/outtake ports of the servo amplifier and servomotor with cooling fan.
- Do not allow conductive matter such as screw or cutting chips or combustible matter such as oil enter the module, servo amplifier or servomotor.
- The module, servo amplifier and servomotor are precision machines, so do not drop or apply strong impacts on them.
- Securely fix the module, servo amplifier and servomotor to the machine according to the instruction manual. If the fixing is insufficient, these may come off during operation.
- Always install the servomotor with reduction gears in the designated direction. Failing to do so may lead to oil leaks.

		1
Store and use the	e unit in the following environmental con	ditions.
Environment	Cond	litions
Environment	Module/Servo amplifier	Servomotor
Ambient temperature	According to each instruction manual.	0°C to +40°C (With no freezing) (32°F to +104°F)
Ambient humidity	According to each instruction manual.	80% RH or less (With no dew condensation)
Storage temperature	According to each instruction manual.	-20°C to +65°C (-4°F to +149°F)
Atmosphere	Indoors (where not subject to direct sunlight). No corrosive gases, flammable gases, oil mist or dust must exist	
Altitude	1000m (3280.84ft.) or less above sea level	
Vibration	According to each	instruction manual

- When coupling with the servomotor shaft end, do not apply impact such as by hitting with a hammer. Doing so may lead to detector damage.
- Do not apply a load larger than the tolerable load onto the servomotor shaft. Doing so may lead to shaft breakage.
- When not using the module for a long time, disconnect the power line from the module or servo amplifier.
- Place the module and servo amplifier in static electricity preventing vinyl bags and store.
- When storing for a long time, please contact with our sales representative. Also, execute a trial operation.
- Make sure that the connectors for the servo amplifier and peripheral devices have been securely installed until a click is heard.

Not doing so could lead to a poor connection, resulting in erroneous input and output.

(4) Wiring

≜CAUTION

- Correctly and securely wire the wires. Reconfirm the connections for mistakes and the terminal screws for tightness after wiring. Failing to do so may lead to run away of the servomotor.
- After wiring, install the protective covers such as the terminal covers to the original positions.
- Do not install a phase advancing capacitor, surge absorber or radio noise filter (option FR-BIF) on the output side of the servo amplifier.
- Correctly connect the output side (terminal U, V, W). Incorrect connections will lead the servomotor to operate abnormally.
- Do not connect a commercial power supply to the servomotor, as this may lead to trouble.



(5) Trial operation and adjustment



(6) Usage methods

	▲ CAUTION	
 Immediately turn OFF module, servo amplifi Always execute a test have been changed of Do not attempt to disa company recognized. Do not make any mode Keep the effect or elea wire shields, etc. Electromagnetic obstraamplifier. When using the CE M (data number IB(NA)-servo amplifiers and of Note that when the reat the partner axis (2nd the speed limit value) Use the units with the 	 ⁵ the power if smoke, abnormal soun er or servomotor. t operation before starting actual ope or after maintenance and inspection. assemble and repair the units exclud difications to the unit. ctromagnetic obstacles to a minimur acles may affect the electronic device Mark-compliant equipment design, ref. 67339) and refer to the correspondir other equipment. eference axis speed is designated for axis, 3rd axis and 4th axis) may be lated. 	ds or odors are emitted from the erations after the program or parameters ing a qualified technician whom our in by installing a noise filter or by using es used near the module or servo fer to the "EMC Installation Guidelines" ing EMC guideline information for the interpolation operation, the speed of arger than the set speed (larger than
ltem	Condi	tions
	L61P	L63P
Input power	100 to 240VAC ^{+10%}	24VDC ^{+30%}
input portor	(85 to 264VAC)	(15.6 to 31.2VDC)
Input frequency	50/60H	z ±5%
Tolerable momentary power failure	10ms c	or less

(7) Corrective actions for errors

- If an error occurs in the self diagnosis of the module or servo amplifier, confirm the check details according to the instruction manual, and restore the operation.
- If a dangerous state is predicted in case of a power failure or product failure, use a servomotor with electromagnetic brakes or install a brake mechanism externally.
- Use a double circuit construction so that the electromagnetic brake operation circuit can be operated by emergency stop signals set externally.



- If an error occurs, remove the cause, secure the safety and then resume operation after alarm release.
- The unit may suddenly resume operation after a power failure is restored, so do not go near the machine. (Design the machine so that personal safety can be ensured even if the machine restarts suddenly.)

(8) Maintenance, inspection and part replacement

≜CAUTION

- Perform the daily and periodic inspections according to the instruction manual.
- Perform maintenance and inspection after backing up the program and parameters for the module and servo amplifier.
- Do not place fingers or hands in the clearance when opening or closing any opening.
- Periodically replace consumable parts such as batteries according to the instruction manual.
- Do not touch the lead sections such as ICs or the connector contacts.
- Before touching the module, always touch grounded metal, etc. to discharge static electricity from human body. Failure to do so may cause the module to fail or malfunction.
- Do not directly touch the module's conductive parts and electronic components. Touching them could cause an operation failure or give damage to the module.
- Do not place the module or servo amplifier on metal that may cause a power leakage or wood, plastic or vinyl that may cause static electricity buildup.
- Do not perform a megger test (insulation resistance measurement) during inspection.
- When replacing the module or servo amplifier, always set the new module settings correctly.

≜CAUTION • When the module or absolute value motor has been replaced, carry out a home position return operation using one of the following methods, otherwise position displacement could occur. 1) After writing the servo data to the Simple Motion module using programming software, switch on the power again, then perform a home position return operation. • After maintenance and inspections are completed, confirm that the position detection of the absolute position detector function is correct. • Do not drop or impact the battery installed to the module. Doing so may damage the battery, causing battery liquid to leak in the battery. Do not use the dropped or impacted battery, but dispose of it. • Do not short circuit, charge, overheat, incinerate or disassemble the batteries. • The electrolytic capacitor will generate gas during a fault, so do not place your face near the module or servo amplifier. • The electrolytic capacitor and fan will deteriorate. Periodically replace these to prevent secondary damage from faults. Replacements can be made by our sales representative. Lock the control panel and prevent access to those who are not certified to handle or install electric equipment.

• Do not mount/remove the module or terminal block more than 50 times (IEC61131-2-compliant), after the first use of the product. Failure to do so may cause malfunction.

• Do not burn or break a module and servo amplifier. Doing so may cause a toxic gas.

(9) About processing of waste

When you discard module, servo amplifier, a battery (primary battery) and other option articles, please follow the law of each country (area).

- This product is not designed or manufactured to be used in equipment or systems in situations that can affect or endanger human life.
- When considering this product for operation in special applications such as machinery or systems used in passenger transportation, medical, aerospace, atomic power, electric power, or submarine repeating applications, please contact your nearest Mitsubishi sales representative.
- Although this product was manufactured under conditions of strict quality control, you are strongly advised to install safety devices to forestall serious accidents when it is used in facilities where a breakdown in the product is likely to cause a serious accident.

(10) General cautions

≜CAUTION

All drawings provided in the instruction manual show the state with the covers and safety partitions removed to explain detailed sections. When operating the product, always return the covers and partitions to the designated positions, and operate according to the instruction manual.

REVISIONS

* The manual number is given on the bottom left of the back cover.

Print Date	* Manual Number	Revision
Jun., 2011	SH(NA)-030102-A	First edition

This manual confers no industrial property rights or any rights of any other kind, nor does it confer any patent licenses. Mitsubishi Electric Corporation cannot be held responsible for any problems involving industrial property rights which may occur as a result of using the contents noted in this manual.

© 2011 MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

INTRODUCTION

Thank you for choosing the Simple Motion Module LD77MH. Before using the equipment, please read this manual carefully to develop full familiarity with the functions and performance of the Simple Motion Module you have purchased, so as to ensure correct use.

CONTENTS

Safety Precautions	A- 1
Revisions	A-11
Contents	A-12

1. OVERVIEW

1.1 Features of Simple Motion Module (LD77MH)1	l
1.2 Related Manuals	l

2. SIMPLE MOTION MODULE START-UP

2.1 System which Combines LD77MH and MR-J3-□B	3
2.2 Preparing devices	4
2.3 Startup procedures	5
2.4 Installing modules	6
2.5 Wiring and connecting cables	7
2.6 Installing application software	10
2.7 Creating sequence programs by using GX Works2	12
2.8 Creating Parameter and Positioning Data by using Simple Motion Module Setting Tool	
2.9 Operation Check	32
•	

3. SYNCHRONOUS CONTROL START-UP

3.1 2-axes System where Synchronous Control is Available	41
3.2 Start-up Procedure in Synchronous Control	42
3.3 Creating Parameter for Synchronous Control	43
3.4 Operation check of synchronous control	51

APPENDICES

40 to 57

APPENDIX 1 Start address setting	58
APPENDIX 2 Parameter and positioning data	59
APPENDIX 3 Various monitor functions	62
APPENDIX 3.1 Axis monitor	62
APPENDIX 3.2 Error history of Simple Motion Module Setting Tool	68
APPENDIX 3.3 PC diagnosis of GX Works2	69
APPENDIX 4 Sample program	70

2 to 39

1. OVERVIEW

This quick start guide describes the items and the operations which are needed to wire the Simple Motion Module, as well as to perform the JOG operation, the program operation and the simultaneous control by using the FA engineering software MELSOFT GX Works2 and MR Configurator2, for users who use the Simple Motion Module for the first time. To fully utilize each module, such as CPU modules of MELSEC-L series, please refer to the relevant manuals depending on the purpose.

For users who use the MELSEC-L series CPU module (hereafter "CPU module") for the first time, please read "MELSEC-L Series Quick Start Guide" once.

1.1 Features of Simple Motion Module (LD77MH)

- 1) Wide range of controls is realized by high performance and multiple functions.
- This module realizes positioning control, synchronous control, cam control and speed and torque control.
- 2) Adoption of the built-in synchronous encoder interface realizes cost reduction.
- 3) Highly flexible baseless structure realizes space-saving control board.
- 4) This module supports SSCNETIII and it can be connected with the high-performance servo amplifier.
- 5) Simple control setting, without programs.
- 6) Assistant function realizes easy setup.

Parameters can be setup, from settings to adjustment, by using "Simple Motion Module Setting Tool" which is installed in GX Works2 as standard equipment or MR Configurator2.

1.2 Related Manuals

(1) Simple Motion Module

Name	Manual Number
Type LD77MH Simple Motion Module User's Manual (Positioning control)	
This manual explains the functions of Simple Motion Module type LD77MH.	10 0000470
In addition, it also describes the operations of devices and parameters, what is a basic knowledge	IB-0300172
necessary for programming.	
Type LD77MH Simple Motion Module User's Manual (Synchronous control)	
This manual explains the functions of Simple Motion Module type LD77MH.	IB-0300174

(2) MELSEC-L series programmable logic controller

Name	Manual Number
Programmable Controllers MELSEC-L Series Quick Start Guide	1.004005
This quick start guide introduces the basic installation procedures of programmable controllers.	L08180E
MELSEC-L CPU Module User's Manual (Hardware Design, Maintenance and Inspection)	
This manual explains the specifications and the methods for installation, maintenance and	SH-080890
inspection of the CPU modules and power supply modules.	
MELSEC-L CPU Module User's Manual (Function Explanation, Programmable Fundamentals)	
This manual explains the functions of CPU modules.	011 000000
In addition, it also describes devices and parameters, basic knowledge necessary for	SH-080889
programming, as well as the operation of display units.	

(3) Servo amplifier

Name	Manual Number	
SSCNETIII Compatible MR-J3-B SERVO AMPLIFIER INSTRUCTION MANUAL	011 000054	
This manual explains I/O signals, parts identification, parameters and startup procedures.	SH-030051	
SSCNETIII Compatible Linear Servo MR-J3-B-RJ004U INSTRUCTION MANUAL	011 000054	
This manual explains I/O signals, parts identification, parameters and startup procedures.	SH-030054	
SSCNETIII interface 2-axis AC Servo Amplifier MR-J3W-B SERVO AMPLIFIER INSTRUCTION		
MANUAL	SH-030073	
This manual explains I/O signals, parts identification, parameters and startup procedures.		

P0=0.0mm

<Speed [mm/min>

2000.00

-30000.00

2. SIMPLE MOTION MODULE START-UP

This document explains for the 1-axis system which applies a ball screw.



2

Time

2.1 System which Combines LD77MH and MR-J3-B

The following shows the configuration example of a system which combines LD77MH4, MR-J3-B and a servomotor.



2.2 Preparing devices

Please prepare the following devices, cables and software.



2.3 Startup procedures

This section describes the operations and steps of items needed for starting up the system.

2.1	System which combines LD77MH
	and MR-J3-B.
2.2	Preparing devices

2.3 Startup procedures

2.4 Installing modules	(1) Installing modules(2) Installing batteries(3) Installing DIN rails
------------------------	--

|--|

2.6 Installing application software	(1) Installing MELSOFT GX Works2(2) Installing MR Configurator2(3) Checking the startup of MELSOFT GX Works2
2.7 Creating sequence programs	(1) Creating a new project

2.7 Creating sequence programs	(1) Creating a new project
	(2) Creating sequence programs
by using GX works2	(3) Saving a sequence program as a project
	(4) Connecting CPU module and personal computer
	(5) Format of the CPU module
	(6) Writing the sequence program to the PLC CPU

2.8 Creating parameter and positioning data by using Simple Motion Module Setting Tool	 (1) Adding a Simple Motion Module (2) Starting the Simple Motion Module Setting Tool (3) Creating a new project (4) Setting the system setting (5) Parameter setting (6) Servo parameter setting (7) Positioning data setting (8) Saving a Simple Motion Module as a project (9) Writing to the Simple Motion Module
2.9 Operation check	(1) JOG operation (for checking the rotation direction, the electronic gear setting etc.)
	(2) OPR (for checking a home position)(3) Positioning control

2.4 Installing modules

Install the prepared modules.



(1) Installing modules

- 1) Release the module joint levers located on the top and bottom of the LD77MH module. (Slide the hook forward.)
- 2) Engage the LD77MH module and the connector of the CPU module by plugging them properly.
- 3) Lock the module joint levers located on the top and bottom of the LD77MH module. (Slide the hook backward.)
- 4) Follow the same procedures of 1) to 3) to install the END cover.

5) Completed

(2) Installing batteries

Connect a battery connector when using the CPU module for the first time.

¥

(3) Installing DIN rails

Install the module to DIN rails.

(4) Installation completed

2.5 Wiring and connecting cables

The following shows the connection examples of wiring and connecting cables of the Simple Motion Module (LD77MH) and the servo amplifier (MR-J3 series). Use cables with the same wire size as when the servo amplifier, MR-J3-10B, is used. In case that the capacity of the servo amplifier is different, refer to the servo amplifier instruction manuals.

(1) Wiring the power supply module

The following shows an example of wiring the power supply wires and grounding wire tor power supply module. Connect an isolation transformer when much noise is generated in the power supply system.

Item	Applicable wire size	Tightening torque
Power supply wires	0.75 to 2mm ² (AWG18 to AWG14)	0.59 to 0.88N•m
Grounding wire	0.75 to 2mm ² (AWG18 to AWG14)	0.59 to 0.88N•m



(2) Wiring the power supply and the motor power to the servo amplifier





(3) Setting the servo amplifier axis select rotary switch

The switches "0" to "F" of servo amplifier axis select rotary switch correspond to d01 to d16. The relationship between "SSCNET Structure" and axis select rotary switch is shown in the figure below. Set the switches to the corresponding axis No.



(4) Connecting various cables

Connect the SSCNETIII cable and the encoder cable. Connect the USB cable between personal computer and PLC CPU. (Refer to Section 2.1)

Next page

(5) Checking if the power is properly turned on

Make sure that the power supply of PLC and servo amplifier is properly turned on.

- 1) Check the wiring of the PLC CPU module.
- 2) Turn on the power supply of the PLC.



- (a) Power supply module: LED (Green) is lit.
- (b) CPU module: MODE LED (Green) is lit.

When parameters and programs are not written to the CPU module, there is no problem with flashing of ERR LED in red. ERR LED is turned off when the power supply is turned off and then on after writing parameters and programs.

- 3) Check the wiring of the servo amplifier.
- 4) Turn on the power supply of the servo amplifier.
 - The communication status with LD77MH can be checked in the servo amplifier display.

	Servo amplifier	LED display	Status	Description	Wiring result	
ſ		AA	Initializing standby	The power supply of the LD77MH is turned off.		
	881 0 	Ab	Initializing	The power supply of the servo amplifier is turned on while the power supply of the LD77MH is turned off.		
		b01	Ready OFF	PLC ready signals of LD77MH are received.		
		C01	Servo OFF	Servo off command is received.	Normal	
		d01	Servo ON	All axes servo on signal of LD77MH received.		
		E6	During servo forced stop	During servo forced stop of the servo amplifier		
		E7	During controller force stop	During force stop of LD77MH		
		Off	-	The control power supply is turned off.	Error	

<Countermeasures>

1) The LED display of the servo amplifier is AA or Ab when parameters are not written to LD77MH, but there is no problem. Write parameters to LD77MH.

2) Check the wiring of the control power supply when LED is turned off.

(6) Completed

2.6 Installing application software

The following shows how to install MELSOFT GX Works2 as a programming tool, and MR Configurator2 as a servo parameter setting tool.

(1) Installing MELSOFT GX Works2

Install the software by following the instruction manual which comes with MELSOFT GX Works2.

Item	Model name	Overview	Supported version
MELSOFT GX Works2	SW1DNC-GXW2-E	 Mitsubishi IQ Platform-compatible Programmable Controller Engineering Software (Integrated software of programming, simulation, module settings and monitoring tool function) 	1.48A



(2) Installing MR Configurator2

Please contact your nearest Mitsubishi sales representative for the MR Configurator2.

Item	Model name	Overview	Supported version
MR Configurato	2 SW1DNC-MRC2-E	 Parameter settings and adjustment of servo amplifier (Parameter settings, monitoring and graphs) 	1.01B or later

Next page

(3) Checking the startup of MELSOFT GX Works2

 Creating an icon of MELSOFT GX Works2. Select [Start] → [All Programs] → [MELSOFT Application] → [GX Works2] → [GX Works2]. 	
Image: MELSOFT Application Image: MR Configurator Image: Startup Image: MT Works2 Image: MT Developer Image: MT Developer Image: GX Works2 Image: GX Works2 And then, the icon can be created on desktop by right-clicking to select [Send To] →	
[Desktop (Create Shortcut)].	
Send To	
Cut Image: Copy Copy Mail Recipient	
Create Shortcut I My Documents Delete III 3.5 Floppy (A:)	
 2) Starting MELSOFT GX Works2 When there is an icon Double-click is start MELSOFT GX Works2 	
 When there is no icon Click [Start] → [All Programs] → [MELSOFT Application] → [GX Works2] → [GX Works2] to start software. 	the
The main screen of GX Works2 will appear.	
★ (4) Completed	

2.7 Creating sequence programs by using GX Works2

This section explains the methods from creating to saving a new project of the sequence program.

(1) Creating a new project

1) Starting MELSOFT GX Works2 끏 Double-click to start MELSOFT GX Works2 2) Creating a new project A project contains programs, device comments and parameters. New Project 🚺 MELSOFT Series GX Works2 Project Type: 3) Project Edit Find/Replace OK Col Simple Project -Cancel XBBOOM Use Label 2) PLC Series: LCPU • PLC Type: L26-BT -Language: Ladder -Project Type : Simple Project **PLC Series** : LCPU PLC Type : L26-BT (This section explains the method with an example of using L26CPU-BT.) Programming Language : Ladder Use Label : Not Use

3) Displaying the main screen

Click the OK button to display a project tree and circuit screen on the main screen.

		I MELSOFT Series GX Works2	Wnuet Proje	et) - [[PRG]	MAIN]					
H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1 H 1	If the first of the first	Project Edit End/Replace Qo	npile Yew (pline Debue	Disprostics	Tool Window	Heb		T for 6	-
Nevication ••× Project •• Project •• Project •• Orace Total Value ••	Novication • × • × • • • • • • •	1232422321713	· 為 部 出 1	スポー語 読	號 :::: 나,	da ata ha M	10142	88121138	D 51.1.64	ļ
Project	Project Pro	Navigation P ×	PRG] H	AIN ×						4
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Project P								

4) New project creation completed

(2) Creating sequence programs

For the next step, create a sequence program.

For the details, refer to the related manuals written in "1.2 Related manuals (2) MELSEC-L series programmable logic controller".

In addition, if you wish to use sample data, please contact your nearest Mitsubishi sales representative.

1) Sample data

[Sample data of LD77MH]

Item	Project name	Description
	L02_LD77MH4_SEQ	for L02CPU and LD77MH4 (Axis 4 type)
I D77MU comple data	L26_LD77MH4_SEQ	for L26CPU and LD77MH4 (Axis 4 type)
	L02_LD77MH16_SEQ	for L02CPU and LD77MH16 (Axis 16 type)
	L26_LD77MH16_SEQ	for L26CPU and LD77MH16 (Axis 16 type)

2) Unpacking the LD77MH sample data

Unpack the LD77MH sample data into any folder.

	Item	Packed data
¥	LD77MH sample data	ld77mhe_00c

3) Reading sequence programs

Projects of the sequence program are read from the unpacked sample data.

- (a) Select [Project] \rightarrow [Open Project] from the menu.
- (b) Click the [Browse] button to select the folder in which the project is saved.
- (c) Select the project.

<u>Project</u> <u>Edit</u> <u>F</u> ind,	GX Works2 (Unse /Replace <u>C</u> ompile	Workspace Location:		(b)
Dew	Ctrl+N Ctrl+O	L:¥usrE¥ld77mhe_00c¥St Workspace/Project List:	artup-Guidance¥L26_LD77	MH4 <u>Browse</u> Dlay <u>a</u> ll folders
Close Save Save <u>A</u> s	Ctrl+S	Project	PLC Type	Title It returns to the workspac Ex. LD77MH Startup Guida
	(a)	(C)		
		Workspace Name:	L26_LD77MH4	
		Libjett Marie:		
				3)

Next page

- 4) Displaying the main screen
 - Click the [Open] button to display the main screen.



5) Sequence program completed

Ŵ

(3) Saving a sequence program as a project

- 1) Select [Project] \rightarrow [Save As] from the menu.
- 2) Select [Browse] to specify the save destination path.
- Enter any names (for workspace, project and title). Make sure not to overwrite to the original project.
- 4) Click the [Save] button.
- 5) To save the project, click the [Yes] button.

🌃 MELSOFT S	eries GX Works2 (Unse	Save As	
Eroject Edit	Eind/Replace Compile	Save Location:	2)
<u>I</u> <u>N</u> ew	Ctrl+N	D:¥usrE¥LD77MH	Browse
🛾 🔁 <u>O</u> pen	Ctrl+O	Workspace/Project List:	
<u>C</u> lose		Workspace	
<u>B</u> ave	Ctrl+S		
Save <u>A</u> s			
			3)
		Workspace Name:	Startup-gauidance
	1)	Project Name:	LD77MH-cample1
		Project Name:	
		<u>T</u> itle:	EX. LD77MH Startup Guidance (AXIS 16- L26CPU-B1)
		I✓ Revision is in <u>h</u> erited.	4)
		M becurity is innerited.	Save Cancel
			MELSOFT Series GX Works2
			The specified project does not e
			5) Do you want to create a new pr
			Yes No

6) Saving projects completed

(4) Connecting CPU module and personal computer

Write sequence programs to PLC CPU.

1) Connecting CPU module and personal computer



- 2) PLC power supply ON
- Turn on the power of the power supply module.
- 3) Connection settings of GX Works2 and PLC

Click the [Connection Destination] and double-click the [Connection 1] button.

Navigation 7 ×	Transfer S		tion1	ar in	8				-
Connection Destination	PC side I/F	Secial	CC IE Cort	CC-Link	Ethernet	CC IE Field	Q Series	NET(II)	PLC
ピ 🗈 🖄 🗞 🖻		US8	Board	89962	609K2	859K3	ous	board	board
Current Connection	PLC side IJF					1			
Connection1	→	BLS Module	CC IE Cont NET/10(H) Module	CC-Link Module	Ethernet Module	524	GOT	CC IE Field Master/Local Module	CC IE Fiel Communical Head Mode
							PLC	Mode (LCPU	
All Connections	Other			10	-	1		10000	000200
Connection1	Station Setting	o Specificatio	9	ther Station	Other	Station		PLC D	rect Coupled
				ande networks	(co.e	oscerace recovers,			ionnection I
	Network	Time cor (xec.) 100	Recry times (PLC Type	
	Route	CC IE Cont	CC IE Field	Ethernet	CC-Link	C24		Detai	vstem Image
Project							11	Une Corri	ection (Q/A6
User Library	Co-existence Network								ОK
	Route	CC IE Cont NET/1 (H)	CC IE Field	Ethernet	CC-Link	C24	c de		Cancel
Connection Destination		Acce sing H	ost Station						
	Taront	TMAX CPU	Setting		Torost	lyylan -			
	System				1	-	1		



Double-click [Serial USB] on PC side I/F to display the screen shown left.

Select "USB".

Double-click [CPU Module] on PLC side I/F to display the screen shown left.

Select "LCPU".

Select "No Specification" in specification of Other Stations Setting.

Press the button of the connection test.

When the procedure is completed without error, the connection completion screen will appear.

4) Connecting CPU module and personal computer completed

(5) Format of the CPU module

- 1) Format of the CPU module
- Select [Online] \rightarrow [PLC Memory Operation] \rightarrow [PLC Memory Format] from the menu.



2) Click the [Execute] button to display the memory format confirmation screen.

	Memory will be formatte Do you want to continu
	<u>/es No</u>
MELSO	FT Application 🔀 Completed.
r T	OK

3) Memory format completed

ł

(6) Writing the sequence program to the PLC CPU

Open the front side cover of CPU module, and place the switch to the position of STOP. Then, write data to CPU.

1) Writing to CPU module

Click [Parameter + Program], and also click [Execute] to write to the PLC CPU.

3000	Read from PLC	Online Data Operation
-	Nead Iron PLO	Connection Channel List
	Write to PLC	System Image
	Verify with PLC	C Past G Write C Past
	Remote Operation	
	Password/ <u>K</u> eyword	PLC Module Minimum Intelligent Function Module Execution Target Data(No / Yes)
	PLC Memory Operation	Title
	Delete PLC Data	Edit Data Parameter+Program Select Al Cancel All Selections
	— PLC User Data →	Module Name/Data Name Title Tetail Last Change Target Memory Size
	1.22.224.22.2	PLC Data Program Memory/D
		Program(Program File)
		2010/01/16 16:14:08 3316 By
		Provide Control Contro Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Co
		Global Device Comment
		2010/01/11 16:51:04
		Related Eunctions << Execute C
		Remote Set Clock PLC User Data Write Title Format PLC Clear PLC Memory Arrange PLC
		Operation Memory Memory
ransfei	rence to CPU module	
	logo] to alogo the window	v after writing is completed.
lick [C		
Click [C		
Click [C		
Click [C		



3) Termination of writing to CPU

Serial Port PLC Module Connection(USB)						System Image	
C Read G Write	C N	erify.	C De	ete			
		5447	1 20				
PLC Module Theligent Function Module Exe	ecution Targe	t Data(1	10 1	Yes)			
Title							
	-	1		- 1			
Edit Data	Select &	Al Cano	el All Selec	tions			
Module Name/Data Name	Title	Target	Detail	Last Change	Target Memory	Size	
- III L26CPU-sample1E						6	
PLC Data			(manual)		Program Memory/D		
- Marcharter (Program File)			(Detail)	010/01/16 16:14:09		2216 Puttor	
C St Darameter				.010/01/10 10.14.00		5510 bytes	
PIC (Network/Remote Password/Switch Setting				010/01/11 16:51:00		3128 Bytes	
Global Device Comment			i i i				
COMMENT		Ö	Detail	011/02/02 20:39:22			
E B Device Memory			Detail				
A MAIN			1	010/01/11 16:51:04			
Necessary Setting(No Setting / Already Set)	Set if it is ne	eded(No :	Setting /	Already Set)			
Writing Size 6,444Bytes				1,058,516	6,444Bytes	Refresh	
Writing Size 6,444Bytes				1,058,516	se Volume 6,444Bytes Execu	Refres <u>h</u>	Click [Close] to close the winde
Writing Size 6,444Bytes Related Euroctions <<				1,058,516	6,444BytesExecu	Refres <u>h</u>	Click [Close] to close the winde
Writing Size 6,4448/kes) Related Eurotions <<		Ð		1,058,516	se Volume 6,444Bytes Execu	Refres <u>h</u>	Click [Close] to close the wind
Writing Size 6,14489/tes Related Euroctions << Related Euroctions << Related Euroctions << Related Euroctions < Image: Constraint of the second	ie Title	Format P Memory	LC Clea	rree Volume U 1,058,516 wr PLC Memory Arran Mer	6,444Bytes	Refres <u>h</u>	Click [Close] to close the wind
Writing Size 6,4448/452 Related Euroctons<	ie Title	Format P Memory	LC Clea	rree Volume U 1,058,516	e Volume 6,414Bytes Execu ge PLC nory	Refres <u>h</u>	Click [Close] to close the wind
Writing Size 6,144Bytes Related Euroctors<< Remote Generation Set Clock PLC User Data Writ Coperation	:e Tikle	Format P Memory	LC Clea	rree Volume U 1,058,516	e Volume 6,414Bytes Execu ge PLC nory	Refres <u>h</u>	Click [Close] to close the wind
Writing Size 6,4448ytes Related Euroctions << Period Content of the size of	ie Title	Format P Memory	LC Clea	rree Volume U	e Volume 6,444Bytes Execu 2 9e PLC nory	Refresh te Close	Click [Close] to close the windo

4) Writing to CPU module completed

2.8 Creating Parameter and Positioning Data by using Simple Motion Module Setting Tool

This section explains the setting methods of parameters and positioning data used in the Simple Motion Module (LD77MH).

(1) Adding a Simple Motion Module

1) Right-click on [Intelligent Function Module] in GX Works2 to select [New Module].



2) Select a module.

The following shows a setting example of when the Simple Motion Module (LD77MH) is connected next to the CPU module.

Module Selection -	1	
Module Type	Analog Module	-
M <u>o</u> dule Name	Analog Module Counter Module LD75 Type Positioning Module Serial Communication Module	2)
Mount Position —	Simple Motion Module	
Base No.	Mounted Slot No. 0	Acknowledge I/O Assignmer
Base No. Specify start Title Setting <u>Title</u>	Mounted Slot No. و	Acknowledge I/O Assignmer
Base No.	Mounted Slot No. 0	Acknowledge I/O Assignmer cupy [16 points]

Itom	PL	C type	
liem	L02CPU	L26CPU-BT	
Module Type	Simple Motion Module		
Module Name	LD7	7MH4	
Mounted Slot No.		0	
Specify start XY	0010	0020	
address	0010	0030	
Specify start XY address	✓ (Click the set of the set o	ne checkbox.)	
Title	Ор	otional	

3) Click the [OK] button.



Point

The start address of the Simple Motion Module (LD77MH) differs depending on the combination with CPU module. For details, refer to Appendix 1.

4) Setting completed

The following explains the setting method with the Simple Motion Module Setting Tool. (2) Starting the Simple Motion Module Setting Tool

1) Double-click the [Simple Motion Module] button to start the Simple Motion Module Setting Tool.



(3) Creating a new project

1) Click the [New] button.

Item	PLC	type
	L02CPU	L26CPU-BT
Module type	Simple Mot	tion Module
Module name	LD77	'MH4
Specify start XY address	0010	0030
Title	Opti	onal

Module Selection -	
Module Type	Simple Motion Module
Module Name	LD77MH4
Specify start XY a	address 0030 (H) 2 Slot Occupy [32 points]
Specify start XY a	address 0030 (H) 2 Slot Occupy [32 points]
Specify start XY a Title Setting 	address 0030 (H) 2 Slot Occupy [32 points]

Module type:

Simple Motion Module Module name : LD77MH4 Specify start XY address : 0030

2) Click the [OK] button to add LD77MH to the intelligent function module of the project.



3) Continue to (4) Setting the system setting.

(4) Setting the system setting

Set the necessary parameters for the Simple Motion Module (LD77MH) in series.

- 1) Double-click the [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [System Structure] buttons.
- 2) Double-click the image of the first axis of the servo amplifier.



4) System configuration setting completed

(5) Parameter setting

1) Double-click the [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [Parameter] buttons.



2) Basic parameter setting

Click the [Compute Basic Parameter 1 (B)] button.

3) Enter a numerical value according to the specification of the device.

<Device specifications>

- i		
	Machine Components	: Ball Screw, Horizontal
	Unit setting	: 0mm
	Lead of Ball Screw	: 10000.0 [µm]
	Reduction ratio (NL/NM)	: 1/2 (Load side [NL]/Motor side [NM]) Motor side makes two rotations while
		the load side makes one.
	Encoder Resolution	: 262144 [PLS/rev]

4) Click the [Compute Basic Parameters 1] button.

5) The calculation result is reflected to the parameter by clicking the [OK] button.



Next page

- 6) Set other parameters.
 - Change the underlined part. (There is no need to change the basic parameter 1 since the parameter is already set in the previous section.)
 - The value can be changed by double-clicking each item of the parameter setting screen.
- Point (a) The default values of the input signal logic selection upper limit and lower limit are set to negative logic, considering the safety. If you do not use these signals, change the values to positive logic before use. (b) Forced stop input signal is enabled, considering the safety. If users do not use this signal, switch it to be disabled before using. Item Description Unit setting 0: mm 16384 [PLS] (262144 [PLS]) Number of pulses per revolution Basic Movement amount per revolution 312.5 [µm] (5000.0 [µm]) parameters 1 Unit magnification 1: x 1 time Bias speed at start 0.00 mm/min Speed limit value 30000.00 [mm/min] Basic Acceleration time 0 1000 [ms] parameters 2 Deceleration time 0 1000 [ms] Backlash compensation amount 0.0 [µm] Software stroke limit upper limit value 214748364.7 [µm] Software stroke limit lower limit value -214748364.8 [µm] 0: Apply Software Limit to Current Feed Software stroke limit selection Value Software stroke limit valid/invalid setting 0: Valid Command in-position width 10.0 [µm] Torque limit setting value 300 [%] 0: WITH mode M code ON signal output timing 0: Standard Speed Switching Mode Speed switching mode Interpolation speed designation method 0: Composite Speed 0: Not update of current feed value Current feed value during speed control Detailed Input signal logic selection : lower limit **1: Positive Logic** parameters 1 Input signal logic selection : upper limit 1: Positive Logic Input signal logic selection : Stop signal 0: Negative Logic Input signal logic selection: External command/ 0: Negative Logic switching signal Input signal logic selection: Near-point dog signal 0: Negative Logic Input signal logic selection: Manual pulse generator

Detailed parameters 2 input

External Input signal selection

Speed-position function selection

Forced stop valid/invalid selection

encoder input selection

Acceleration time 1

Acceleration time 2

Acceleration time 3

Deceleration time 1

Deceleration time 2

Deceleration time 3

Manual pulse generator/ Incremental synchronous

0: Negative Logic

(INC Mode)

1: Invalid

1000 [ms]

1000 [ms]

1000 [ms]

1000 [ms]

1000 [ms]

1000 [ms]

1: Use Input of Servo Amplifier

0: A-phase/B-phase mode (4 multiply)

0: Speed-Position Switching Control
ł

	Item	Description
	JOG speed limit value	15000.00 [mm/min]
	JOG operation acceleration time selection	0: 1000
	JOG operation deceleration time selection	0: 1000
		0: Trapezoidal acceleration/
	Acceleration/deceleration process selection	deceleration processing
	S-curve ratio	100 [%]
	Sudden stop deceleration time	1000 [ms]
	Stop group 1 sudden stop selection	0: Normal deceleration stop
	Stop group 2 sudden stop selection	0: Normal deceleration stop
	Stop group 3 sudden stop selection	0: Normal deceleration stop
Detailed	Positioning complete signal output time	300
parameters 2	Allowable circular interpolation error width	10.0 [µm]
	External command function selection	0: External positioning start
	Speed control 10 x multiplier setting for degree axis	0: Invalid
	Restart allowable range when servo OFF to ON	0 [PLS]
	Manual pulse generator/ Incremental synchronous	
	encoder input type selection	0: Differential output type
	Operation setting for speed-torque control mode:	
	Speed initial value selection	0: Command speed
	Operation setting for speed-torque control mode:	0:Switching Conditions Valid at
	Condition selection at mode switching	Switching Mode
	External command signal selection	0:Unused
	OPR method	6: Data set method
OPR	ODD direction	0: Positive direction (address
Original Daint	OPR direction	increment direction)
	OP address	0.0 [µm]
Return) basic	OPR speed	0.01 [mm/min]
parameters	Creep speed	0.01 [mm/min]
	OPR retry	0: Do not retry OPR with limit switch
	Setting for the movement amount after near-point dog ON	0.0 [<i>µ</i> m]
	OPR acceleration time selection	0: 1000
	OPR deceleration time selection	0: 1000
OPR	OP shift amount	0.0 [µm]
Original Daint	OPR torque limit value	300 [%]
(Original Point	Operation setting of incompletion of OPR	0: Positioning control is not executed.
Return) detailed	Speed designation during OP shift	0: OPR speed
parameters	Dwell time during OPR retry	0 [ms]
	Pulse conversion module : OPR request setting	0: Turn OPR Request ON at Servo OFF
	Pulse conversion module :Waiting time after clear	100
	signal output	TUUTIIS
	Optional data monitor : Data type setting 1	0: No Setting
Evenneine	Optional data monitor : Data type setting 2	0: No Setting
Expansion	Optional data monitor : Data type setting 3	0: No Setting
parameters	Optional data monitor : Data type setting 4	0: No Setting
	Operation cycle setting	1: 1.77 ms

Note 1 : The Operation cycle setting and External command signal selection are used only in a parameter of LD77MH16.

<Example of setting the speed limit value in maximum motor speed>

Servomotor : HF-KP13 (262144 [pulse/rev])

Gear : 1/2

Ý

Speed limit value = Maximum motor selection [r/min] × Gear ratio (n) × Ball screw lead [mm]

= 30000.00 [mm/min]

7) Parameter setting completed

(6) Servo parameter setting

1) Start MR Configurator2.



2) Invalidity of forced stop signal

Select "Invalid (Not use forced stop input (EMI))" in the servo forced stop selection.

evalid (Not use forced stop ipput (EM1))	~
maild (not doe for deal stop input (EMT))	
/alid (Use forced stop input (EM1))	
nvalid (Not use forced stop input (EM1))	

Forced stop input selection specifies whether to load or not the forced stop input signal from the servo amplifier. For safety reasons, the default setting is "Select Forced Stop Input Selection (EM1)". For not loading the forced input signal, change to setting to "Not Select Forced Stop Input Selection (EMI)".

3) Home position set condition selection

Click [Component parts] to display the component parts screen.

Select "Z-phase must not be passed." in the home position set condition selection.



- 4) Close MR Configurator2.
 - Click the [x] button to display the save confirmation screen of the changed contents.
- Click the [Yes] button to close MR Configurator2.
- 5) Servo parameter setting completed

(7) Positioning data setting

This section explains the setting method of the positioning data with using program examples which reciprocate between the home position and P1.

[Operation example of returning the original position after moving to P1]





2) Selecting the data setting assistant

Click the [Data Setting Assistant] button to display the screen as follows.

3) Input data for each item and the positioning control system.





4) Click the [Set] button to close the data setting assistant screen and display the positioning data screen.

	No.	Operation pattern	Control system	interpolated	time No.	time No.	Positioning address	Arc address
	1	1:CONT	01h:ABS Linear 1		0:1000	0:1000	100000.0 µm	0.0 µm
	2	0:END <positioning comm<="" td=""><td>01h:ABS Linear 1</td><td>1.</td><td>0:1000</td><td>0:1000</td><td>0.0 µm</td><td>0.0 µm</td></positioning>	01h:ABS Linear 1	1.	0:1000	0:1000	0.0 µm	0.0 µm
	3	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>					
	4	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>					
	Ę							
5								

5) Create the command which returns from P1 to the home position in the positioning data No.2 by using the same method.

No.	Operation pattern	Control system	Axis to be interpo- lated	Acceleration time No.	Deceleration time No.	Positioning address	Arc address	Command speed	Dwell time	M code
1	<u>1:</u> Continuation	<u>ABS</u> linear 1	_	1:1000	1:1000	<u>100000.0µm</u>	0.0 <i>µ</i> m	<u>2000.00</u> mm/min	0ms	0
2	<u>0:</u> Completion	ABS linear 1	_	1:1000	1:1000	<u>0.0</u> <u>µm</u>	0.0 <i>µ</i> m	<u>30000.00</u> <u>mm/min</u>	0ms	0

6) Positioning data completed

(8) Saving a Simple Motion Module as a project

Save a project of the Simple Motion Module.

```
<Save data>
```

Item	Description	Remark	
System Structure	Existence of axes, amplifiers and virtual servo to be used		
Parameter	Overall parameter of each axis	Always	
Servo parameter	Parameter of servo amplifier	necessary	
Positioning data	Positioning data		
Block start data	Data for block start		
Synchronous control parameter	Parameter for synchronous control	If needed	
Cam data	Cam pattern		

1) Select [Project] \rightarrow [Save As] from the menu.

2) Select [Browse] to specify the save destination path.

3) Enter any names (for workspace, project and title).

<u>N</u> ew	Ctrl+N	odve ns			
<u>O</u> pen	Ctrl+O	Save Location:			2)
<u>C</u> lose		D:¥usrE¥LD77MH¥LD77MH-	rest	Brown	ice ,
Save	Ctrl+S			Dion	.90111
Save <u>A</u> s		Workspace/Project List:			
Co <u>m</u> press/Unpack	×	Project	PLC Type	Title	
Delete	4	E		It returns to the works	spac.
<u>V</u> erify	1)	TD77MH-sample1-1	L26-BT	Ex. LD77MH Startup G	āuida.
<u>V</u> erify	1)	LD77MH-sample1-1	L26-BT	Ex. LD77MH Startup G	5uida.
<u>−</u> Verify	1)	UD77MH-sample1-1	L26-BT	Ex. LD77MH Startup G	Suida.
<u>v</u> erify	1)	Workspace Name: Project Name:	L26-BT LD77MH-test LD77MH-sample1-1	Ex. LD77MH Startup G	Suida.
<u>V</u> erify	1)	Workspace Name: Project Name: Jitle:	L26-BT LD77MH-test LD77MH-sample1-1 Ex. LD77MH Startu	Ex. LD77MH Startup G 3) I] Ip Guidance (Axis 4- L26CPU-BT)	Suida.
<u>V</u> erify	1)	LD77MH-sample1-1 Workspace Name: Project Name: Jitle: I	L26-BT LD77MH-test LD77MH-sample1-1 Ex. LD77MH Startu	Ex. LD77MH Startup G 3) Il up Guidance (Axis 4- L26CPU-BT)	

4) Click the [Save] button.

When the new project is saved, the save confirmation screen appears.

	Do you want to create	a new project?
	<u>Y</u> es	No
_	(<u>Y</u> es	No

5) Saving the project of the Simple Motion Module completed

(9) Writing to the Simple Motion Module

Write parameters and positioning data to the Simple Motion Module.



Next page

4) Power OFF to ON

Reset the PLC CPU or power OFF to ON.

If the servo parameter is overwritten, power the servo amplifier OFF to ON.

Point

Please write the sequence program, the parameters and the other data of the simple motion controller at first. And switch power off once and then switch it on again. When "ERR. LED" lights up or blinks please confirm the error and take measures according to the manual. Please refer to Appendix 3.2 and 3.3 for a way of the error confirmation.

5) Writing completed

REMARK

Refer to the project of parameters and positioning data to be used in the Simple Motion Module (LD77MH).

In addition, if you wish to use sample data , please contact your nearest Mitsubishi sales representative.

1) Sample data.

Item	Project name	Descrip	tions	Remark
	L02_LD77MH4_POS	for L02CPU and LD77MH4	Sample data of the simple	
	L26_LD77MH4_POS	for L26CPU and LD77MH4	motion	1 ovio
	L02_LD77MH4_SYNC	for L02CPU and LD77MH4	Sample data for	4-axis
		for L26CDLL and LD77ML4	synchronous control of	type
sample			the simple motion	
data	L02-LD77MH16_POS	for L02CPU and LD77MH16	Sample data of the	
uala	L26-LD77MH16_POS	for L26CPU and LD77MH16	simple motion	16 ovio
	L02-LD77MH16_SYNC	for L02CPU and LD77MH16	Sample data for	10-0315
		for L26CPU and LD77MH16	synchronous control of	iyhe
			the simple motion	

- 2) Unpacking the download module
- Unpack the download module into any folder.
- 3) Reading a project
 - Read the project from the unpacked sample data
 - (a) Select [Project] \rightarrow [Open Project] from the menu.
 - (b) Click the [Browse] button to select the folder in which the project is saved.
 - (c) Select a project.

(d) Click the [Open] button to open the project.

Pro	oject <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>O</u> nline	<u>T</u> ools ⊻	Open Project		×
	<u>N</u> ew Open	Ctrl+N Ctrl+O	Save <u>F</u> older Path :) 1
P	<u>C</u> lose <u>S</u> ave Save <u>A</u> s	Ctrl+S	Workspace/Project List: Project	Display all folders Title It returns to the workspace list.	<u>se</u>
	Co <u>m</u> press/Unp <mark>ack (a)</mark>	,	126 ID77MH4 PO5	(C)	
			Workspace Name: Project Name:	L26_LD77MH4	
,			Itle:	(d)	ancel

4) Reading the project completed

The projects provided on MELFANSweb contains the explained contents in this section "(4) Setting the system setting" to "(7) Positioning data setting".

2.9 Operation Check

. This sequence program is an example using LD77MH4 and L26CPU-BT. When other modules are used, the assignment of the signal is different. Please refer to the user's manual (positioning control) for details of each signal.

(1) JOG operation (for checking the rotation direction, the electronic gear setting etc.)

1) Change the [RESET/RUN/STOP] switch of the PLC CPU module to RUN.

2) Turn the Servo ON device from the sequence program.

Select [Online] \rightarrow [Monitor] \rightarrow [Start Monitoring] in GX Works2 to display a monitor screen. Move the cursor to the PLC READY ON signal (X7B).

Double-click the PLC READY ON signal (X7B) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X7B ON.



3) JOG speed setting

Double-click JOG operation speed setting (X5D) with pressing the SHIFT key.



4) JOG starting

Double-click Forward rotation JOG (X5E) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X5E ON and the axis 1 rotates forward.

Furthermore, double-click Forward rotation JOG (X5E) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X5E OFF and the axis 1 stops.





5) Checking JOG operation

Double-click the [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [Monitor] \rightarrow [Module Monitor] \rightarrow [Axis Monitor]button to display the axis monitor initial window.



Ý

Axis Monitor

Screer	า	Check Item	Value
Axis Monitor Monitor Type:	Axis(Output Axis) 🔻		
	0		
Current feed value	A85 #1	Axis 1 Current feed value	_
Machine feed value	10900.2 µm		-
Axis error No.	0	Axis T Machine leeu value	
Axis warning No.	0		
Axis operation status	10G Operation	Axis operation status	JOG Operation
	For operation	Axis feed rate	100.00
Axis feedrate	100.00 mm/min		100.00
Positioning data No. being executed	1231		
Positioning data being executed : Operation pattern	Positioning Complete		
Positioning data being	-		
Positioning data being			
executed : Acceleration time No.	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Deceleration time No.	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Axis to be interpolated	+		
Positioning data being			
Deviation counter	3715 PLS		
Motor rotation speed	21.1 r/min		
Motor current value	1.4 %		
Servo status : Servo alarm	OFF		
Servo status : Servo warning	OFF	Forward JOG start	ON
Forward JOG start	ON	Reverse IOG start	OFF
Status : OPR request flag	ON		
Status : OPR complete flag	OFF		
Start complete	OFF		
External input signal : Lower	ON		
External input signal : Upper limit	ON		
Module Information List			
PLC READY(Y30)		PLC READY	ON
ID77 READY(X30)		LD77 READY	ON
Synchronization flag(X31)		Synchronization flog	ON
All axes servo ON(V31)		Synchronization hag	
Servo status · READY ON		All axes servo ON	ON
Axis No. 1 2 3 4	6	Servo status : READY ON	
Servo status - Servo ON		AXIS 1	ON
Axis No. 1 2 3 4	6	Servo status : Servo UN	
Covered after insulation		AXIS	UN
 Porcea stop input(U3#G1431) 		BUSY	_
Avis No. 1 2 3		Axis 1	ON
Error detection			
MAIS INU, 1 2 3 4			
Status : Axis warning detection			
Axis No. 1 2 3 4			
In test mode flag(U3¥G1200)			
AMP-less operation mode statu	us(U3¥G1432)		
No. of writing to Flash ROM(U3	3¥G1424)		
Disibil OSC mussies flast invo	1211)		
Stopped	1211)		
			1

[Operation check procedure]

Item	Operation	Status
All axis servo ON	Turn X7B ON.	Check servo amplifier LED. Check the signal state of LD77 READY X30, Synchronization flag, PLC READY and All axis servo.
Axis 1 JOG speed setting	Turn X5D ON.	Check the JOG speed at the axis 1 current feed speed.
Axis 1 forward rotation command turns ON	Turn X5E ON.	Check if the servomotor rotates forward. Check if the axis 1 current feed value increases.
Axis 1 forward rotation command turns OFF	Turn X5E OFF.	Check if the servomotor stops.
Axis 1 reverse rotation command turns ON	Turn X5F ON.	Check if the servomotor rotates reversely. Check if the axis 1 current feed value decreases.
Axis 1 reverse rotation command turns OFF	Turn X5F OFF.	Check if the servomotor stops.

6) Change of motor rotation direction

Change the motor rotation direction to forward/reverse.



7) Completion of the JOG operation check

(2) OPR (for checking a home position)

OPR (Original Point Return) control includes "machine OPR" that establishes a machine OP without using address data, and "fast OPR" that carries out positioning to the coordinates established by the machine OPR.

This document explains the method to operate the data setting type of machine OPR.

1) To operate machine OPR

After setting the positioning start number, turn ON the positioning start to start OPR.

	ltem	Buffer memory		Signal	Description	
-		LD77MH4	LD77MH16	olgridi	Description	
	Axis 1 positioning start No.	1500	4300	-	Set the positioning start No. Set 9001 for machine OPR.	
¥	Axis 1 positioning start	_	_	Y40	Execute the positioning start and OPR.	

2) Setting the axis 1 positioning start No.

Double-click Machine OPR command (X53) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X53 ON and to set 9001 to the start No. register.

Positioning start No. setting program (1) Muchine (PR) Double-click with pressing the				
SHIFT key.	MOYP	≉ <machine opr<br="">K9001</machine>	(9001) write D82 Start No	> J

3) Axis 1 OPR start

Double-click Positioning start command (X71) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X71 ON. OPR starts by setting 9001 of the start No. register to the buffer memory and turning the axis 1 positioning start signal ON.



Next page

ł

3) Checking of axis 1 OPR

Scree	n	Check item	Value
Axis Monitor Monitor Type:	Axis(Output Axis) 💌		
r -	0.1.44		
Current feed value	AXIS #1	Axis 1 Current feed value	0.0
Machine feed value	0.0 µm	Axis 1 Machine feed value	0.0
Axis error No.	0.0 μ		0.0
Axis warning No.	0		
Axis operation status	Waiting	Axis operation status	Waiting
Axis feedrate	0.00 mm/min	Axis feedrate	0.00
Positioning data No. being	-		0.00
executed Resitioning data being			
executed : Operation pattern	Positioning Complete		
Positioning data being executed : Control system			
Positioning data being executed : Acceleration time	0:1000		
NO. Desitioning data baing			
executed : Deceleration time No.	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Axis to be	-		
Positioning data being executed : M code	-		
Deviation counter	-1 PLS		
Motor rotation speed	1.0 r/min		
Motor current value	0.3 %		
Servo status : Servo alarm	OFF		
Cerve status i Cerve warning	OFF	Status: OPP request flag	
Status : OPR request flag	OFF	Status. OFR request hay	OFF
Status : OPR complete flag	ON	Status: OPR complete flag	ON
Module Information	list		
	LIST		
PLC READY(Y30)		PLC READY	ON
LD77 READY(X30)		LD77 READY	ON
 Synchronization flag 	(X31)	Synchronization flag	ON
All axes servo ON(Y)	31)	All axes servo ON	ON
Servo status : READ	Y ON	Servic status · PEADV ON	
Axis No. 1	2 3 4	Axis 1	ON
Servo status : Servo	ON	Servo status : Servo ON	
Axis No. 1	2 3 4	Axis 1	ON
Forced stop input(U	3¥G1431)		
BUSY			
Axis No. 1	2 3 4		
Error detection			
Axis No. 1	2 3 4		
Status : Axis warnin	g detection		

¥

4) Completion of axis 1 OPR

(3) Positioning control

This section explains the operation check method of positioning control which uses the address information.

[Operation example of returning the original position after moving to P1]



1) To execute positioning

After setting the positioning start number, turn ON the positioning start to start positioning.

	Itom	Buffer memory		Signal	Description	
	llem	LD77MH4	LD77MH16	Signal	Description	
	Axis 1 positioning start No.	1500	4300	-	Set the positioning start No.	
¥.	Axis 1 positioning start	-	-	Y40	Execute the positioning start.	

2) Setting the axis 1 positioning start No.

Double-click Positioning start command (X55) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X55 ON and to set 1 to the start No. register.

* (2)Positioning with positioning data No.	Double-click with the SHIFT key.	pressing		* <positioning< th=""><th>s data No. 1 setting</th></positioning<>	s data No. 1 setting
X55 Position ing star			[MOVP	К1	D32 O Start No
t comman d					

¥

3) Axis 1 positioning start

Double-click Positioning start command (X71) with pressing the SHIFT key to turn X71 ON. Positioning starts by setting 1 of the start No. register to the buffer memory and turning the axis 1 positioning start signal ON.

-

Next page

- 4) Checking of axis 1 positioning control
 - Check if the axis 1 current feed value moves to 100.00 mm and returns to 0.0 mm.
- Check if the axis 1 feedrate is the command speed.

Axis Monitor Monitor Type	n	Check item	Value
internet internet yper	Axis(Output Axis)		
	Axis #1		
Current feed value	68770.3 µm	Axis 1 Current feed value	_
Machine feed value	68770.3 µm	Axis 1 Machine feed value	_
Axis error No.	0		
Axis warring No.	Position Control		
Axis feedrate	2000.00 mm/min	Axis operation status	Position Contro
Positioning data No. being executed	1	Axis lederate	-
Positioning data being executed : Operation pattern	Continuous Positioning Control		
Positioning data being executed : Control system	1 axis linear control (ABS)		
Positioning data being executed : Acceleration time No.	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Deceleration time No.	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Axis to be interpolated	-		
Positioning data being executed : M code	-		
Deviation counter	65046 PLS		
Motor rotation speed	401.6 r/min		
Motor current value	1.1 %		
Servo status : Servo warning	OFF		
Status : OPR request flag	OFF		
Status : OPR complete flag	OFF		
Start complete	OFF		
External input signal : Lower			1
h n	ION	Extornal input aignal : Lower limit	
limit Evtoreal ion: their all a liter	ON	External input signal : Lower limit	ON
limit External input signal : Upper limit	ON ON	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit	ON ON
limit External input signal : Upper liest Module Information		External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit	ON ON
limit External input signal : Upper Module Information		External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit	ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Instit Module Information PLC READY(Y30)		External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY	ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Instit Module Information PLC READY(Y30) DD77 READY(X30)		External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY	ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Institute PLC READY(Y30) DD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(ON ON List	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag	ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Instit Occule Information PLC READY(Y30) LD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3	ON ON List X31) 1)	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON	ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Module Information PLC READY(Y30) LD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READY	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON	ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Instit Module Information PLC READY(Y30) LD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3) Servo status : READY Axis No. 1	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1	ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Instit Module Information PLC READY(Y30) LD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READY Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4 ON	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON	ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Imit PLC READY(Y30) LD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READY Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo Axis No. 1	ON ON List X31) 1) / ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Invit	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4 ¥G1431)	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Induite Information PLC READY(Y30) LD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READY Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo Axis No. 1 Forced stop input(U3 BUSY	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4 ¥G1431)	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1 BUSY	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Instit PLC READY(Y30) PLC READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READY Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo Axis No. 1 Forced stop input(U3 BUSY Axis No. 1	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4 ¥G1431) 2 3 4	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1 BUSY Axis 1	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Imit PLC READY(Y30) DLD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READ) Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo Axis No. 1 Forced stop input(U3 BUSY Axis No. 1 Error detection	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4 ¥G1431) 2 3 4	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1 BUSY Axis 1 Error detection	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Imit PLC READY(Y30) DID77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READY Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo Axis No. 1 Forced stop input(U3 BUSY Axis No. 1 Error detection Axis No. 1	ON ON List X31) 1) (ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4 ¥G1431) 2 3 4 2 3 4	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1 BUSY Axis 1 Error detection	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
Imit External input signal : Upper Imit PLC READY(Y30) DLD77 READY(X30) Synchronization flag(All axes servo ON(Y3 Servo status : READ) Axis No. 1 Servo status : Servo Axis No. 1 Forced stop input(U3 BUSY Axis No. 1 Error detection Axis No. 1 Status : Axis warning	ON ON List X31) 1) / ON 2 3 4 ON 2 3 4 ¥G1431) 2 3 4 ¥G1431) 2 3 4 Heretion	External input signal : Lower limit External input signal : upper limit PLC READY LD77 READY Synchronization flag All axes servo ON Servo status : READY ON Axis 1 Servo status : Servo ON Axis 1 BUSY Axis 1 Error detection Axis warning detection	ON ON ON ON ON ON ON ON N

(4) Completion of operation check

3. SYNCHRONOUS CONTROL START-UP

This section explains the synchronous control.

In particular, the operation check of the synchronous control parameter, positioning data for synchronous control and synchronous control are explained. For existing parameters and servo parameters, refer to Chapter 2.

<Running cutoff device>

This is a device that makes the cutter axis (axis 1) follow the operating conveyor axis (axis 2) without stopping and cuts the center of a work. After cutting, the cutter axis moves to the standby position. Synchronous control where an electronic cam is used in the cutter axis is executed.



<Specifications>

As the roller of the belt conveyer rotates once, a work on the belt conveyor moves for one work size.

(1) Specifications of cutter axis (cam control axis)

Ball screw lead (PB)	: 10mm
Gear ratio of external reduction gear	: 1/2
Cam stroke	: 100.000mm
(2) Specifications of belt conveyor	
Roller diameter	: 50mm(Circumference of roller 50mm × π = 157079.6 μ m)
Gear ratio of external reduction gear	: 1/1 (roller directly connected to a servomotor)

<Operation pattern of device>

The cutter axis (axis 1) moves constant distance in synchronization with the belt conveyor. After synchronization, the axis returns to the original position. The belt conveyor operates at constant speed.

<Speed [mm/min> 2000.00 Cutter axis Speed [mm/min> 2000.00 Belt conveyor axis Time

3.1 2-axes System where Synchronous Control is Available

The following shows the configuration example of a system which combines LD77MH4, MR-J3- B and a servomotor.



3.2 Start-up Procedure in Synchronous Control

3.1 2-axes system where synchronous control is available

Preparing devices	Refer to 2.2 Preparing devices.
Installing modules	Refer to 2.4 Installing modules.
Wiring and connecting cables	Refer to 2.5 Wiring and connecting cables
Installing application software	Refer to 2.6 Installing application software
Creating sequence programs for	(1) Creating a new project
synchronous control	(2) Creating sequence programs
	(3) Saving a sequence programs as a project
	(4) Connecting CPU module and personal computer
	(5) Format the CPU module
	(6) Writing the sequence program to the PLC CPU
3.3 Creating parameter for synchronous control	(1) Setting the system setting
	(2) Parameter and servo parameter settings
	(3) Positioning data setting
	(4) Synchronous control parameter setting
	(5) Cam data setting
	(6) Saving a project
	(7) Writing to the Simple Motion Module

3.4 Operation check	(1) OPR (for establishing a home position)
	(2) Start-up of drive axis
	(3) Operation check of a synchronous axis
	(4) Operation check with digital oscilloscope

3.3 Creating Parameter for Synchronous Control

(1) Setting the system setting

Set the system configuration of 2-axes system.



(2) Parameter and servo parameter settings

Set parameters and servo parameters of the axis 1 and 2. The setting list is given in Appendix 2.

The electronic gear settings of the belt conveyor are described as follows.



(3) Positioning data setting

Create a program where the belt conveyor (axis 2) moves to P1 from the home position. Create a cam data in synchronization with the belt conveyor for the axis 1 which executes the cam control.



1) Selecting the positioning data

Double-click [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [LD77MH4] \rightarrow [Positioning Data] \rightarrow [Positioning Data Axis #2] to display the positioning data screen.

Intelligent Eurotion Module					2		
0030:LD77MH4	No.	Operation pattern	Control system	Axis to be interpolated	Acceleration time No.	Deceleration time No.	Positioning address
🖭 📷 System Setting		0:END	02h:INC Linear 1	-	0:1000	0:1000	157079.6 µm
- 🕎 Parameter	1 1	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>				
🕞 🧊 Servo_Parameter	2						
🖻 🚱 Positioning Data	6	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>				
Axis #1 Positioning Data	3						
Axis #2 Positioning Data		< Positioning Comm	nent>				
Axis #3 Positioning Data	4	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>				
Axis #4 Positioning Data							
Block Start Data	5	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>				
🔯 Synchronous Control Parame							
🙈 Cam Data	6	<positioning comm<="" td=""><td>nent></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></positioning>	nent>				

	uuic	3010011.		
Project	/	0030:LD77MH4[]-System Structure	🔗 0030:LD77MH4[]-Parameter	🔗 0030:LD77MH4[]-Axis #2 🗵

<Axis 2 Positioning data>

Nia	Operation	Control	Axis to be	Acceleration	Deceleration	Positioning	Arc	Command	Dwell	М
INO.	pattern	system	interpolated	time No.	time No.	address	address	speed	time	code
4	<u>0:</u>	INC		1. 1000	1. 1000	<u>157079.6</u>	0.0	<u>2000.00</u>	0	0
1	Completion	Liner 1	-	1: 1000	1: 1000	μm	μm	mm/min	Ums	0

(4) Synchronous control parameter setting

Set a parameter of the axis 1 that executes cam operation in synchronization with the current feed value of the axis 2 servo input axis.

Item	Description
Input axis parameter	Set the servo input axis type for the main axis.
input axis parameter	("1: Current feed value" for the axis 2)
Synchronous parameter axis 1	Set the synchronous control parameter of the axis 1.

1) Synchronous control parameter screen start-up

Double-click [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [LD77MH4] \rightarrow [Synchronous Control Parameter] \rightarrow [Synchronous Control Parameter Axis 1].



0.0000 mm

2) Synchronous control parameter setting

Click the setting area of [Main Input Axis No.] to display the contents that can be set.



In the same way, change the underlined part.

<Synchronous parameter axis 1>

	Item		Description
	Main input avia Na	Туре	1: Servo input axis
Main shoft	Main input axis No.	Axis No.	<u>2</u>
Main Shan	Sub input ovia No	Туре	0: Invalid
	Sub input axis ino.	Axis No.	0
Main shaft	Main		1: Input+
composition gear	Sub		0: Not input
Main aboft goor	Numerator		1
Main shalt gear	Denominator		1
	Main shaft clutch	ON control mode	0:No Clutch (Direct Coupled Operation)
		OFF control mode	0:OFF Control Invalid
	control setting	High speed input request signal	0
	Main shaft clutch refe	rence address setting	0:Current Value after Main Shaft Composite Gear
Main shaft clutch	Main shaft clutch ON	address	0 PLS
	Travel value before m	ain shaft clutch ON	0 PLS
	Main shaft clutch OFF	address	0 PLS
	Travel value before m	ain shaft clutch OFF	0 PLS
	Main shaft clutch smo	othing system	0:Direct
	Main shaft clutch smo	othing time constant	0 ms
	Slippage at main shaf	t clutch ON	0 PLS
	Slippage at main shaf	t clutch OFF	0 PLS
Auxilians shaft	Туре		0:Invalid
Auxiliary shall	Axis No.		0
Auxiliary shaft	Main shaft		1:Input+
composite gear	Auxiliary shaft		0:No Input
Auxiliary shaft	Numerator		1
gear	Denominator		1
Auxiliary shaft clutch	Auxiliary shaft	ON control mode	0:No Clutch (Direct Coupled Operation)
	clutch control	OFF control mode	0:OFF Control Invalid
	setting	High speed input	0
	Auxiliary shaft clutch r	eference address setting	0:Current Value after Main Shaft Composite Gear
	Auxiliary shaft clutch (ON address	0 PLS
	Travel value before au	uxiliary shaft clutch ON	0 PLS
	Auxiliary shaft clutch (OFF address	0 PLS
	Travel value before au	uxiliary shaft clutch OFF	0 PLS
	Auxiliary shaft clutch s	smoothing system	0:Direct
	Auxiliary shaft clutch s	smoothing time constant	0 ms
	Slippage at auxiliary s	haft clutch ON	0 PLS
	Slippage at auxiliary s	haft clutch OFF	0 PLS

	Item		Description
	Speed change gear arrai	ngement	0: No transmission
Speed change	Speed change gear smo	othing time constant	0ms
gear	Cread abarra ratio	Numerator	1
	Speed change ratio	Denominator	1
		Unit setting selection	0: Use units of Main Input axis
	Com ovio ovolo unit	Unit	<u>0mm</u>
		number of decimal	<u>0</u>
		places	
Output axis	Cam axis length per cycle	е	<u>157.0796mm</u>
	Cam stroke amount	<u>100000.0µm</u>	
	Cam No.		1
	Cam axis phase correction	on advance time	0µs
	Cam axis phase correction	on time constant	10ms
	Output axis smoothing tir	ne constant	0ms
	Current value per cycle	Setting method	0:Previous Value
	after main shaft gear	Initial setting value	0 PLS
	Current value per cycle	Setting method	0:Previous Value
Synchronous	after auxiliary shaft gear	Initial setting value	0 PLS
control initial position	Cam axis position recove	ery target	0:Cam Axis Current Value per Cycle Recovery
parameter		Setting method	2:Current Feed Value
	Cam reference position	Initial setting value	0.0 <i>µm</i>
	Cam axis current value	Setting method	0:Previous Value
	per cycle	Initial setting value	0 PLS

ł

3) Input axis parameter setting of synchronous control parameter

Double-click [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [LD77MH4] \rightarrow [Synchronous Control Parameter] \rightarrow [Input Axis Parameter].

🖃 🕋 System Setting	Item	Axis #1	Axis #2
Mark Detection	- Servo input axis		
Parameter	Servo input axis type Detail setting	0:Invalid	1:Current Feed Value
🖅 🎯 Positioning Data	Input smoothing time constant	0 ms	0 ms
Synchronous Control Parame	Phase correction advance time	0 µs	0 µs
Input Axis Parameter	Phase correction time constant	10 ms	10 ms
Axis #I Synchronous Par Axis #2 Synchronous Par Axis #3 Synchronous Par	Rotation direction restriction	0:Without Rotation Direction Restriction	0:Without Rotation Direction Restriction
Axis #4 Synchronous Par © Cam Data © Equivariant Digital Oscilloscope			

			Item	Description
		Servo input axis t	уре	1: Current feed value
		t Detail setting	Input smoothing time constant	0ms
	Servo input		Phase correction advance time	0µs
	axis		Phase correction time constant	10ms
			Detetion direction restriction	0: Without Rotation
			Rotation direction restriction	Direction Restriction
7				

4) Setting completion of synchronous control parameter and input axis parameter

(5) Cam data setting

- 1) Cam data screen start-up
 - Right-click the [Cam data] button and select [Create new data] to display the creating new data screen.
- Set the cam No. and click the [OK] button.



2) Cam data screen start-up

The initial screen is displayed to create cam data.

Navigation 7 ×	0030:LD7	MH4II-Cam Da ×					
Project						Re	eturn to Basic Se
Intelligent Function Module Intelligent Function Module Intelligent Function Module Intelligent Function Intelligent System Setting Forameter	Setting Method : Resolution : Stroke Setting R -100.000000	Set by Stroke Ratio 256 ange : 0 to 100.0000000 [%]	Length per Cycle Setting Unit : degree Length per Cycle : 36	0.00000 [degree] Stroke Am	ount Setting 	Cam Data Starting Pos. per Cycle : Stroke Pos. :	Point : 0 0.00000 0.0000000
Servo_Parameter	Cam Graph			- Dicolau Magnification			Point Data
Axis #1 Positioning Data	Stroke -	🗆 🗆 Speed — 🗖 Acceler	ation — 🔽 Jerk —	Width 100 - %	Height 100 🔻 % W	//H 100% Screen	View
Avis 43 Positionie Data Avis 44 Positionie Data Block Start Data Synchronous Control Paramete Avis 41 Synchronous Para Avis 42 Synchronous Para Avis 42 Synchronous Para Avis 43 Synchronous Para Avis 43 Synchronous Para Avis 43 Synchronous Para Cam Data Cam Data Cam Data Digital Oscilloscope	[%] 100.0000000 0.0000000						
	-100.0000000 0.00	000	90.00000	180.00000	270	.00000	360.r
	Stroke Setting						
<u>x</u>	Section S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2	tart [degree] End [deg 0.00000	gree] Stroke [%] 0.00000 0.000000	Cam Curve	can curve Detail Setting	Curve Applical Pi 0.00 t Acceleration/C Range Compe Range L1 Range L2 Setting Range	tion Range : :o P2 1.00 >eceleration nsation : 0.0000 0.0000 pe

Next page

Start-up Guidance



(6) Saving a project

Refer to the previous section "Saving a Simple Motion Module as a project".

(7) Writing to the Simple Motion Module

Refer to the previous section "Writing to the Simple Motion Module".

(8) Completion of Synchronous control parameter setting

3.4 Operation check of synchronous control

For details of the operation check for JOG operation, OPR and positioning control, refer to Chapter 2. This section explains the operation check of the synchronous control.

Following the procedure below, the axis 1 executes the cam control in synchronization with the current feed value of the axis 2.

Item	Device	Description
OPR command	X53	Set the OPR No.
Axis 1 positioning start	X71	Turn ON the axis 1 positioning start Y40 and start OPR of the axis 1.
Axis 2 positioning start	X72	Turn ON the axis 2 positioning start Y41 and start OPR of the axis 2.
-	-	Turn OFF X71 and X72 once.
Synchronous control axis setting	X7D	Set the synchronous control axis and G36320 to 1.
Synchronous positioning No. setting	X56	Set positioning No. for the synchronous control.
Axis 2 positioning start	X72	Turn ON the positioning start of the axis 2 and start the synchronous control.

(1) OPR (for establishing a home position)

Execute the OPR of the axis 2.

For details of the operation check for the OPR of the axis 1, refer to Chapter 2.

- 1) Turn Machine OPR command (X53) ON.
- 2) Turn Positioning start command (axis 2) (X72) ON.



(2) Start-up of drive axis

1) Turn ON Synchronous control axis setting (X7D), and set H1 to the buffer memory (U3¥G36320) and the axis 1 as the synchronous control axis.

* Synchronous contirol axis setting	Double-click with			
*	pressing the SHIFT key.	Смоур	* <synchronou: H1</synchronou: 	s control axis setting> U3¥ G36320]

- 2) Checking the axis 1 BUSY signal
 - Check if the axis 1 BUSY signal is turned ON when setting H1 to the buffer memory (U3¥G36320) of the synchronous control start.

	Screen		Axis 1	Axis 2
Axis Monitor Monitor Type:	Axis(Output Axis)	Font Size: 9pt 💌		
	Axis #1	Axis #2		
Current feed value	0.0 um	0.0 µm		
Machine feed value	0.0 µm	0.0 µm		
Axis error No.	0	0		
Avic warning No	0	0		
Axis operation status	Synchronous Control	Waiting	Axis 1: Synchronous Control	
Axis feedrate	0.00 mm/min	0.00 mm/min	-	
Positioning data No. being executed		5		
Positioning data being executed : Operation pattern	Positioning Complete	Positioning Complete		
Positioning data being executed : Control system	-	-		
Positioning data being executed : Acceleration time No.	0:1000	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Deceleration time No.	0:1000	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Axis to be internolated	-	÷		
Positioning data being executed : M code	-	-		
Deviation counter	0 PLS	0 PLS		
Motor rotation speed	-0.5 r/min	0.0 r/min		
Motor current value	-1.0 %	0.0 %		
Servo status : Servo alarm	OFF	OFF		
Servo status : Servo warning	OFF	OFF		
Status : OPR request flag	OFF	OFF		
Status : OPR complete flag	OFF	ON		
Start complete	OFF	OFF		
External input signal : Lower limit	ON	ON		
External input signal : Upper imit	ON	ON		
Module Informatio	n List			
PLC READY(V30)				
ID77 READV(V20)				
 Synchronization fla 	ad(X31)			
 All axes servo ON(Y31)			
Servo status : REA	DY ON			
Axis No. 1	2 3 4			
Servo status : Serv	vo ON			
Axis No. 1	2 3 4			
Forced stop input(U3¥G1431)			
BUSY		ר		
Axis No. 1	2 3 4	J	Axis 1 : BUSY	
Error detection				
Axis No. 1	2 3 4			
Status : Axis warni	ing detection			
Axis No. 1	2 3 4			

Next page

Start-up Guidance

3) Setting the axis 2 program No.



		* <positioning< th=""><th>start command p</th></positioning<>	start command p
×/2		[PLS	M65
Ax2 Posi tioning	Double-click with		Ax2 Posi tioning
start co	pressing the SHIFT key		start cm

(3) Operation check of a synchronous axis

1) Check if the servomotors of the axis 1 and 2 operate.

	Screen		Axis 1	Axis 2
Axis Monitor Monitor Type:	Axis(Output Axis) 🗾	Font Size: 9pt 💌		
	Axis #1	Axis #2		
Current feed value	73647.2 µm	117925.9 µm	_	_
Machine feed value	73647.2 µm	117925.9 µm		_
Axis error No.	U	U		
Axis warning No.	0	0		
Axis operation status	Synchronous Control	Position Control	Synchronous Control	Positioning Control
Axis feedrate	4463.88 mm/min	2000.00 mm/min	-	
Positioning data No. being executed		1		2000.00mm/min
Positioning data being executed : Operation pattern	Positioning Complete	Positioning Complete		
Positioning data being executed : Control system	-	1 axis linear control (INC)		
Positioning data being executed : Acceleration time No.	0:1000	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Deceleration time No.	0:1000	0:1000		
Positioning data being executed : Axis to be interpolated		-		
Positioning data being executed : M code	-	-		
Deviation counter	-86801 PLS	2375 PLS		
Motor rotation speed	-895.5 r/min	13.3 r/min		
Motor current value	-2.0 %	1.1 %		
Servo status : Servo alarm	OFF	OFF		
Servo status : Servo warning	OFF	OFF		
Status : OPR request flag	OFF	OFF		
Status : OPR complete flag	OFF	OFF		
Start complete	OFF	ON		
External input signal : Lower limit	ON	ON	ON	ON
External input signal : Upper limit	ON	ON	ÔN	ON

2) Completion of the operation check with the intelligent function module

(4) Operation check with digital oscilloscope (check of cam operation)

This section explains the method for checking the cam operation with the assistant function of the digital oscilloscope.



Next page

Start-up Guidance

Ret the sampling condition		[Setting of sampling col	ndition]
Set the sampling condition. Set have the sampling condition and performs the setting automatically. Inst. 6° Set from the sampling rate. Samphing Rate (ms) 0.888 × 1 (1 - 5000) ↑° Set from the sampling rate. Total Sampling Time (s) 7.2 (0.1 - 39999.9) Rate of Sampling Time (s)	Sangling Condition Sangling Rate (ms) 0.000 × 1 0.100 × 1 0.100 × 1 0.100 × 1 0.100 × 1 0.100 × 1 0.100 × 1000 Sampling Size (point) 0.100 × 1000 Actual total sampling time (ms) 7281.8 Alter the trippor Sampling Size (point)	Sampling rate (ms) Sampling size Trigger balance (%) After trigger	: 0.888 × 1 : 8192 : 90.00
Trigger Balance (%) 0.00 (0.01-100.00)	Sangling Time (ms) 0553.8 Check all canceling conditions after the calculation result is reflected. the calculation result. OK Cancel	Sampling size Sampling time (ms)	: 7373 : 6553.8

4) Setting the trigger condition

After closing the assistant screen, select [Edit] \rightarrow [Trigger] to display the Initial Setting screen.

Probe Trigger	• <u>r</u>	
AXX, DUMP GGER itial Setting Trigger Setti Sampling Rate (ms) Operation Cycle (ms) Sampling Size (point)	ng 0.888 × 1 8192 (10 to 819	(1 - 5000) → Total Time 7281.8 (ms)
Trigger Balance	Trigger Type Continual Mode STOP Condition	One st Continual One (STOP Operation) Trigger Counts (1-100) Watch Time Pays (1-30) C Hours (1-24)

Select the [Trigger Setting] button.

Clicking the [Trigger Setting] button displays the screen to set the trigger conditions.

WOR	D BIT Next F	rev	Trigge	r Mode	G Bit OR	C Bit AND @ Word	OR CI
	PROBE	Device	Word	Pattern	Filter	Trigger Valu	e
					(x Rate)		
	Ax. 1-Cam Ax. 1 cycle current	v]	2(±)	*	0	100	PLS
	Ax. 1-Cam Ax. feed current va	ī	2(±)	4	0	10	x0.1µm
	Ax. 1-Motor speed(854)		2(±)	—	0	0	×0.1r/min
	Ax. 1-Motor current value(856)	5	1(±)	—	0	0	×0.1%
				—	0	0	
				-	0	0	
			<u> </u>	-	0	0	
					0	0	

Press the [Pattern] button repeatedly to display

Set the following items.

Axis 1 – Cam Axis 1 Cycle Current Value (42812)

A 100×0.0001 mm

Axis 1 – Cam Axis Current Feed Value (42816)

Α 10×0.1μm

Next page

- 5) Starting sampling
 - Display the assistant screen again and select "4) Start sampling (R)".



[Start sampling] Select the [Yes] button to start sampling.

- 6) Check the cam pattern with the digital oscilloscope.
 - Check if the pattern which created the cam data and the axis 1 current feed value of the digital oscilloscope are the same.



(5) Completion of operation checks

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Start address setting

(1) Start address of Simple Motion Module

CPU modules of L series are equipped with built-in I/O and built-in CC-Link. If connecting a Simple Motion Module to the right side of a CPU module, the start XY address becomes the number that is added the No. of I/O points corresponding to the CPU module equipment. Since the number depends on CPU modules, refer to the following table.

[Start address of Simple Motion Module] The start addresses are the default values.





(2) Start address setting

When newly adding a Simple Motion Module, specify the start XY addresses to both of GX Works2 and the Simple Motion Module Setting Tool.



New Module					×	
Module Selection Module Type Module Name	Simple Motion Module	_	<u>.</u>			
Mount Position	Mounted Slot	No. 1	Acknowledge I,	O Assignment		
Title Setting		in balle occupy [or bound]			
			OK	Cancel	J	Set the same addre
Simple Mo	ion Module S	Setting To	OK Ol	Cancel	2	Set the same addre
Simple Mo	ion Module S	Setting To	ok ol	Cancel		Set the same addre
Simple Mo New Module Module Selection Module Type Mgdule Name	ion Module S	Setting To	ок	Cancel	X	Set the same addre
Simple Mo New Module Module Selection Module Type Module Name Specify start XY a	ion Module S Simple Motion Module [LD77MH4 dress 0030] (H)	Setting To	OK Ol	Cancel		Set the same addre
Simple Mor New Module Module Selection Module Type Module Name Specify start XY a Title Setting Itile	Cion Module S	Setting To	OK OI	Cancel		Set the same addre

Appendix 2 Parameter and positioning data

This section shows the parameter and the positioning data that are used in this document.

(1) Parameters

Item		Axis 1	Axis 2		
	Unit Setting	<u>0: mm</u>	<u>0: mm</u>		
Basic	No. of pulses per revolution	16384[PLS]	4625519[PLS] (262144[PLS])		
parameter 1	Movement amount per revolution	<u>312.5[µm]</u>	2771663.0[µm] (157079.6[µm])		
	Unit magnification	1: time	1: time		
	Bias speed at start	0.00 mm/min	0.00 mm/min		
Basic	Speed limit value	30000.00[mm/min]	30000.00[mm/min]		
parameter	Acceleration time	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
2	Deceleration time	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
	Backlash compensation amount	0.0[µm]	0.0[µm]		
	Software stroke limit upper limit value	214748364.7[<i>µ</i> m]	214748364.7[µm]		
	Software stroke limit lower limit value	-214748364.8[µm]	-214748364.8[µm]		
Detailed parameter 1	Software stroke limit selection	0: Apply software stroke limit on current feed value	0: Apply software stroke limit on current feed value		
	Software stroke limit valid/invalid setting	0: Valid	0: Valid		
	Command in-position width	10.0[<i>µ</i> m]	10.0[<i>µ</i> m]		
	Torque limit setting value	300[%]	300[%]		
	M code ON signal output timing	0: WITH mode	0: WITH mode		
	Speed switching mode	0: Standard speed switching mode	0: Standard speed switching mode		
	Interpolation speed designation method	0: Composite speed	0: Composite speed		
	Current feed value during speed control	0: Do not update current feed value	0: Do not update current feed value		
	Input signal logic selection lower limit	1: Positive logic	1: Positive logic		
	Input signal logic selection upper limit	1: Positive logic	1: Positive logic		
	Input signal logic selection: External command/switching signal	0: Negative logic			
	Input signal logic selection: Near-point dog signal	0: Negative logic	0: Negative logic		
	Input signal logic selection: Manual pulse generator input	0: Negative logic			
	Input signal logic selection	1: Input of servo amplifier	1: Input of servo amplifier		
	Manual pulse generator input selection	0: A-phase/B-phase mode (multiplied by 4)	0: A-phase/B-phase mode (multiplied by 4)		
	Speed-position function selection	0: Speed-position switching control (INC mode)	0: Speed-position switching control (INC mode)		
	Forced stop valid/invalid selection	1: Invalid			
	Acceleration time 1	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
Detailed	Acceleration time 2	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
	Acceleration time 3	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
parameter 2	Deceleration time 1	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
<u> </u>	Deceleration time 2	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
	Deceleration time 3	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
	Item	Axis 1	Axis 2		
-------------	--	--------------------------------	--------------------------------	--	
	JOG speed limit value	15000.00[mm/min]	15000.00[mm/min]		
	JOG operation acceleration time selection	0:1000	0:1000		
	JOG operation deceleration time selection	0:1000	0:1000		
	Acceleration/deceleration process selection	0: Automatic trapezoidal	0: Automatic trapezoidal		
		acceleration/	acceleration/		
		deceleration processing	deceleration processing		
	S-pattern ratio	100[%]	100[%]		
	Sudden stop deceleration	1000[ms]	1000[ms]		
	Stop group 1 sudden stop selection	0: Normal deceleration stop	0: Normal deceleration stop		
	Stop group 2 sudden stop selection	0: Normal deceleration stop	0: Normal deceleration stop		
	Stop group 3 sudden stop selection	0: Normal deceleration stop	0: Normal deceleration stop		
Detailed	Positioning complete signal output time	300	300		
parameter 2	Allowable circular interpolation error width	10.0[<i>µ</i> m]	10.0[µm]		
	External command function selection	0: External positioning start	0: External positioning start		
	Speed control 10 x multiplier setting for	0: Invalid	0: Invalid		
	degree axis				
	Restart allowable range when servo OFF to				
	ON				
	Manual pulse/INC synchronous encoder input	0: Differential output type			
	type selection				
	Operation setting for speed/torque control	0: Command speed	0: Command speed		
	mode: Speed default value selection				
	Operation setting for speed-torque control	0:Switching Conditions Valid	0:Switching Conditions Valid		
	mode: Condition selection at mode switching	at Switching Mode	at Switching Mode		
	External command signal selection	0:Unused	0:Unused		
	OPR method	6: Data set method	6: Data set method		
	OPR direction	0: Positive direction (address	0: Positive direction (address		
	OD address				
OPR basic	OP address		0.01[mm (min]		
parameters		0.01[mm/min]	0.01[mm/min]		
		0.01[mm/min]			
	OPR retry	U: Do not retry OPR with limit	U: DO NOT RETRY OPR WITH		
	Sotting for the movement amount after				
		0.0[µ11]	0.0[µ11]		
		0: 1000	0: 1000		
	OPR deceleration time selection	0: 1000	0: 1000		
OPR	OP shift amount	0.0[<i>u</i> m]	0.000		
detailed	OPR torque limit value	300[%]	300[%]		
parameters	Operation setting for incompletion of OPR	0: Positioning control is not	0: Positioning control is not		
		executed	executed		
	Speed designation during OP shift	0: OPR speed	0 [°] OPR speed		
	Dwell time during OPR retry	0[ms]	0[ms]		
	Optional data monitor: Data type setting 1	0: No Setting	0: No Setting		
	Optional data monitor: Data type setting 2	0: No Setting	0: No Setting		
Expansion	Optional data monitor: Data type setting 3	0: No Setting	0: No Setting		
parameters	Optional data monitor: Data type setting 4	0: No Setting	0: No Setting		
	Operation cycle setting	1: 1.77ms			

Note 1 : The Operation cycle setting and External command signal selection are used only in a parameter of LD77MH16.

(2) Positioning data

<Axis 1 Positioning data>

	Operation pattern	Control system	Axis to be interpo- lated	Acceleration time No.	Deceleration time No.	Positioning address	Arc address	Command speed	Dwell time	M code
1	<u>1:</u> Continuation	<u>ABS</u> linear 1	_	1: 1000	1: 1000	<u>100000.0µm</u>	0.0 <i>µ</i> m	<u>2000.00</u> <u>mm/min</u>	0ms	0
2	<u>0:</u> Completion	<u>ABS</u> linear 1	_	1: 1000	1: 1000	<u>0.0</u> <u>µm</u>	0.0 <i>µ</i> m	<u>30000.00</u> mm/min	0ms	0

<Axis 2 Positioning data>

	Operation pattern	Control system	Axis to be interpo- lated	Acceleration time No.	Deceleration time No.	Positioning address	Arc address	Command speed	Dwell time	M code
1	<u>0:</u> Completion	INC liner 1	_	1: 1000	1: 1000	<u>157079.6</u> <u>µm</u>	0.0 μm	<u>2000.00</u> mm/min	0ms	0

Appendix 3 Various monitor functions

Appendix 3 1 Axis monitor

(1) Select Axis Monitor

1) Double-click the [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [Monitor] \rightarrow [Module Monitor] \rightarrow [Axis Monitor]button to display the axis monitor initial window.



3) Select Monitor Item

Click [Select Monitor Item] to display a Axis Monitor screen. Select the displayed item. Select the monitoring item in the Selectable Item.



(a). Selectable Item _____ Input signal, output signal, Axis Monitor Data

ltom	Calactable Itam	buffer mem	ory address
nem	Selectable item	LD77MH4	LD77MH16
	M code ON	X4+n	_
	Error detection		_
input Signai	BUSY	XC+n	X10+n
(X)	Start complete	X10+n	_
	Positioning complete	X14+n	_
	Axis stop	Y4+n	_
Outrout Circal	Forward JOG start	Y8+2n	_
Output Signal	Reverse JOG start	Y9+2n	_
(Y)	Positioning start	Y10+n	Y10+n
	Execution prohibition flag	Y14+n	_
	Current feed value	800+100n	2400+100n
	Machine feed value	802+100n	2402+100n
	Feedrate	804+100n	2404+100n
	Axis error No.	806+100n	2406+100n
	Axis warning No.	807+100n	2407+100n
	Valid M code	808+100n	2408+100n
	Axis operation status	809+100n	2409+100n
Axis Monitor	Current speed	810+100n	2410+100n
Data	Axis federate	812+100n	2412+100n
	Positioning amount of speed-position switching control	814+100n	2414+100n
	External input signal	816+100n	2416+100n
	Status (Note-1)		
	In speed control, Speed-position switching latch, Command in-position,		
	OPR request , OPR complete , Position-speed switching latch ,	817+100n	2417+100n
	Axis warning detection, Speed change 0, M code On,		
	error detection, start complete, positioning complete		

(Note-1) : M code On , error detection, start complete and positioning complete are defined in input signal (X) of LD77MH.

		buffer mem	buffer memory address		
Item	Selectable Item	LD77MH4	LD77MH16		
	Target value	818+100n	2418+100n		
	Target speed	820+100n	2420+100n		
	Movement amount after near-point dog ON		2424+100n		
	torgue limit stored value/ Forward torgue limit stored value	826+100n	2426+100n		
	Special start data instruction : Code setting value	827+100n	2427+100n		
	Special start data instruction : Parameter setting value	828+100n	2428+100n		
	Start positioning data No. setting value	829+100n	2429+100n		
	In speed limit flag	830+100n	2430+100n		
	In speed change processing flag	831+100n	2431+100n		
	special start repetition counter	832+100n	2432+100n		
	Control system repetition counter	833+100n	2433+100n		
	Start data pointer being executed	834+100n	2434+100n		
	Positioning data No. being executed	835+100n	2435+100n		
	Block No. being executed	836+100n	2436+100n		
	Last executed positioning data No.	837+100n	2437+100n		
	positioning data being executed : M code	839+100n	2439+100n		
	positioning data being executed : Dwell time	840+100n	2440+100n		
	positioning data being executed : Axis to be interpolated	_	2441+100n		
	positioning data being executed : Command speed	842+100n	2442+100n		
	positioning data being executed : Positioning address	844+100n	2444+100n		
	positioning data being executed : Arc address	846+100n	2446+100n		
Axis Monitor	OPR re-movement amount	848+100n	2448+100n		
Data	Real current value	850+100n	2450+100n		
	Deviation counter value	852+100n	2452+100n		
	Motor rotation speed	854+100n	2454+100n		
	Motor current value	856+100n	2456+100n		
	Parameter error No	870+100n	2470+100n		
	Servo status 1				
	Zero passage, Zero speed, Speed limit, PID control	876+100n	2476+100n		
	Servo status 2				
	Control mode, Servo alarm, In-position, Torque limit,	877+100n	2477+100n		
	Absolute position lost, Servo warning				
	Regenerative load ratio/ Optional data monitor output 1	878+100n	2478+100n		
	Effective load ratio/ Optional data monitor output 2	879+100n	2479+100n		
	Peak load torgue ratio/ Optional data monitor output 3	880+100n	2480+100n		
	Optional data monitor output 4	_	2481+100n		
	Semi/Fully closed loop status	887+100n	2487+100n		
	Servo alarm	888+100n	2488+100n		
	Reverse torque limit stored value	891+100n	2491+100n		
	Speed during command	892+100n	2492+100n		
	Torque during command	894+100n	2494+100n		
	Servo status 3		0.150		
	Continuous operation to torgue control	858+100n	2458+100n		
	Control mode switching status	895+100n	2495+100n		

ltono		buffer memory address		
Item	Selectable Item	LD77MH4	LD77MH16	
	Positioning start No.	1500+100n	4300+100n	
	Positioning starting point No.	1501+100n	4301+100n	
	Axis error reset	1502+100n	4302+100n	
	Restart command	1503+100n	4303+100n	
	M code OFF request	1504+100n	4304+100n	
	External command valid	1505+100n	4305+100n	
	New current value	1506+100n	4306+100n	
	New acceleration time value	1508+100n	4308+100n	
	New deceleration time value	1510+100n	4310+100n	
	Acceleration/deceleration time change during speed change,	1E12 100m	1212 100m	
	enable/disable selection	1312+1001	4312+10011	
	Positioning operation speed override	1513+100n	4313+100n	
	New speed value	1514+100n	4314+100n	
	Speed change request	1516+100n	4316+100n	
	Inching movement amount	1517+100n	4317+100n	
	JOG speed	1518+100n	4318+100n	
	Interrupt request during continuous operation	1520+100n	4320+100n	
	OPR request flag OFF request	1521+100n	4321+100n	
	Manual pulse generator 1 pulse input magnification	1522+100n	4322+100n	
	Manual pulse generator enable flag	1524+100n	4324+100n	
	New torque value/ forward new torque value	1525+100n	4325+100n	
Axis Control	Speed-position switching control movement amount change register	1526+100n	4326+100n	
Data	Speed-position switching enable flag	1528+100n	4328+100n	
	Position-speed switching control speed change register	1530+100n	4330+100n	
	Position-speed switching enable flag	1532+100n	4332+100n	
	Target position change value (New address)	1534+100n	4334+100n	
	Target position change value (New speed)	1536+100n	4336+100n	
	Target position change request flag	1538+100n	4338+100n	
	Simultaneous starting axis start data No. (axis 1 start data No.)	1540+100n	4340+100n	
	Simultaneous starting axis start data No. (axis 2 start data No.)	1541+100n	4341+100n	
	Simultaneous starting axis start data No. (axis 3 start data No.)	1542+100n	4342+100n	
	Simultaneous starting axis start data No. (axis 4 start data No.)	1543+100n	4343+100n	
	Step mode	1544+100n	4344+100n	
	Step valid flag	1545+100n	4345+100n	
	Step start information	1546+100n	4346+100n	
	Skip command	1547+100n	4347+100n	
	Teaching data selection	1548+100n	4348+100n	
	Teaching positioning data No.	1549+100n	4349+100n	
	ABS direction in degrees	1550+100n	4350+100n	
	Servo OFF command	1551+100n	4351+100n	
	Torque output setting value	1552+100n	4352+100n	
	Gain changing command	1559+100n	4359+100n	
	Torque change function switching request	1563+100n	4363+100n	
	New reverse torque value	1564+100n	4364+100n	

(c). Selectable Item _____ Axis Control Data

		buffer memory address		
Item	Selectable Item	LD77MH4	LD77MH16	
	Parameter write request	1554+100n	4354+100n	
	Parameter No.	1555+100n	4355+100n	
	Change data	1556+100n	4356+100n	
	Semi/Fully closed loop switching request	1558+100n	4358+100n	
	PI-PID switching request	1565+100n	4365+100n	
	Device selection for speed <>position switching	1566+100n	4366+100n	
	Speed <>position switching command	1567+100n	4367+100n	
	Control mode switching request	1574+100n	4374+100n	
	Control mode setting	1575+100n	4375+100n	
	Command speed at speed control mode	1576+100n	4376+100n	
	Acceleration time at speed control mode	1578+100n	4378+100n	
	Deceleration time at speed control mode	1579+100n	4379+100n	
	Command torque at torque control mode	1580+100n	4380+100n	
	Torque time constant at torque control mode (Forward direction)	1581+100n	4381+100n	
Axis Control	Torque time constant at torque control mode (Reverse direction)	1582+100n	4382+100n	
Data	Speed limit value at torque control mode	1584+100n	4384+100n	
	Speed limit value at continuous operation to torque control	1586+100n	4386+100n	
	Acceleration time at continuous operation to torque control	1588+100n	4388+100n	
	Deceleration time at continuous operation to torque control	1589+100n	4389+100n	
	Target torque at continuous operation to torque control	1590+100n	4390+100n	
	Torque time constant at continuous operation to torque control	1591+100n	4391+100n	
	(Forward direction)	1001 10011		
	Torque time constant at continuous operation to torque control	1592+100n	4392+100n	
	(Reverse direction)			
	Control mode switching conditions	1593+100n	4393+100n	
	Control mode switching conditions (parameter)	1594+100n	4394+100n	
	Axis stop	_	30100+10n	
	Forward run JOG start	-	30101+10n	
	Reverse run JOG start	_	30102+10n	
	Execution prohibition flag	—	30103+10n	

(d). Selectable Item Axis Control Data (continued)

(a) Salaatabla Itan		<i>i</i> nobronouo	Control Monitor
(e). Selectable iten	יט ו	ynchionous	

		buffer memory address
Item	Selectable Item	LD77MH4
		LD77MH16
	Current value after main shaft composite gear	42800+40n
	Current value per cycle after main shaft gear	42802+40n
	Current value per cycle after auxiliary shaft gear	42804+40n
	Cam axis phase correction amount	42810+40n
	Cam axis current value per cycle	42812+40n
	Cam reference position	42814+40n
Synchronous	Cam axis current feed value	42816+40n
Control	Execute cam No.	42818+40n
Monitor	Execute cam stroke amount	42820+40n
	Main shaft clutch ON/OFF status	42828+40n
	Main shaft clutch smoothing status	42829+40n
	Main shaft clutch slippage (cumulative)	42830+40n
	Auxiliary shaft clutch ON/OFF status	42832+40n
	Auxiliary shaft clutch smoothing status	42833+40n
	Auxiliary shaft clutch slippage(cumulative)	42834+40n

(f). Selectable Item _____ Synchronous Control Data

		buffer memory address
Item	Selectable Item	LD77MH4
		LD77MH16
	Main shaft clutch command	44080+20n
	Main shaft clutch control invalid command	44081+20n
	Main shaft clutch force OFF command	44082+20n
	Auxiliary shaft clutch command	44083+20n
Synchronous	Auxiliary shaft clutch control invalid command	44084+20n
Control Data	Auxiliary shaft clutch force OFF command	44085+20n
	Synchronous control change request	44086+20n
	Synchronous control change command	44087+20n
	Synchronous control change value	44088+20n
	Synchronous control change reflection time	44090+20n

Appendix 3.2 Error history of Simple Motion Module Setting Tool

Error codes and warning codes at debugging a Simple Motion Module can be referred.

1) Double-click the [Intelligent Function Module] \rightarrow [Monitor] \rightarrow [Module Monitor] \rightarrow [Axis Monitor] button to display the axis monitor initial window.



2) Save to CSV file

The save screen of the CSV file is displayed when clicking on a [Create CSV File]button.

When the file name is specified, the error history is preserved.

Save to CSV file					
Savejn:	🗀 tmp		• 🗢 🖻) 💣 🎟 •	
My Recent Documents					
Desktop					
My Documents					
My Computer					
S					
My Network Places	File <u>n</u> ame: Save as type:	Err20110305154707		- -	<u>Save</u> Cancel
	21	1			

Appendix 3.3 PC diagnosis of GX Works2

Error codes and warning codes at debugging a sequence program can be referred.

1) Select [Diagnostics] \rightarrow [PC Diagnostics] to display the PC diagnostics screen.



Appendix 4 Sample program

(a) This sequence program is an example using LD77MH4 and L26CPU-BT. When other modules are used, the assignment of the signal is different. Please refer to the user's manual (chapter of the positioning control) for details of each signal.

(b) The sequence program of this appendix is used in this startup guidance. Be sure to add and verify the conformance with the desired system before diverting the programs of this appendix to the actual system.

These sequence programs were excerpted from the necessary part of MELSEC-L Type LD77MH Simple Motion Module User's Manual. For details, refer to the user's manual.

(1) Used device list

Classification	Device No.	Signal name	Signal
	X30	PLC ready completion signal	
	X31	Synchronization flag	
	X38	Axis 1 error detection signal	
	X39	Axis 2 error detection signal	
	X3C	Axis 1 BUSY signal	↓ PLC CPU
	X3D	Axis 2 BUSY signal	
	X40	Axis 1 start complete signal	
	X41	Axis 2 start complete signal	
	X50	JOG operation speed setting command	
	X53	Machine OPR No. setting	
Input	X55	Positioning No. setting	
	X56	Synchronous positioning No. setting	
	X5D	JOG operation speed setting command	
	X5E	Forward rotation JOG command	Input unit
	X5F	Reverse rotation JOG command	Ļ
	X6E	Error reset command	PLC CPU
	X6F	Stop command	
	X71	Axis 1 positioning start command	
	X72	Axis 2 positioning start command	
	X7B	PLC ready ON	
	X7D	Synchronous control axis setting	
	Y30	PLC ready signal	
	Y31	All-axes servo ON signal	
	Y34	Axis 1 stop signal	PLC CPU
Output	Y38	Axis 1 forward rotation JOG start signal	\downarrow
	Y39	Axis 1 reverse rotation JOG start signal	LD77MH
	Y40	Axis 1 positioning start signal	
	Y41	Axis 2 positioning start signal	

(2) Sequence program example







73





ΜΕΜΟ

WARRANTY

Please confirm the following product warranty details before using this product.

1. Gratis Warranty Term and Gratis Warranty Range

If any faults or defects (hereinafter "Failure") found to be the responsibility of Mitsubishi occurs during use of the product within the gratis warranty term, the product shall be repaired at no cost via the sales representative or Mitsubishi Service Company.

However, if repairs are required onsite at domestic or overseas location, expenses to send an engineer will be solely at the customer's discretion. Mitsubishi shall not be held responsible for any re-commissioning, maintenance, or testing onsite that involves replacement of the failed module.

[Gratis Warranty Term]

The gratis warranty term of the product shall be for one year after the date of purchase or delivery to a designated place.

Note that after manufacture and shipment from Mitsubishi, the maximum distribution period shall be six (6) months, and the longest gratis warranty term after manufacturing shall be eighteen (18) months. The gratis warranty term of repair parts shall not exceed the gratis warranty term before repairs.

[Gratis Warranty Range]

- (1) The range shall be limited to normal use within the usage state, usage methods and usage environment, etc., which follow the conditions and precautions, etc., given in the instruction manual, user's manual and caution labels on the product.
- (2) Even within the gratis warranty term, repairs shall be charged for in the following cases.
 - 1. Failure occurring from inappropriate storage or handling, carelessness or negligence by the user. Failure caused by the user's hardware or software design.
 - 2. Failure caused by unapproved modifications, etc., to the product by the user.
 - 3. When the Mitsubishi product is assembled into a user's device, Failure that could have been avoided if functions or structures, judged as necessary in the legal safety measures the user's device is subject to or as necessary by industry standards, had been provided.
 - 4. Failure that could have been avoided if consumable parts (battery, backlight, fuse, etc.) designated in the instruction manual have been correctly serviced or replaced.
 - 5. Failure caused by external irresistible forces such as fires or abnormal voltages, and Failure caused by force majeure such as earthquakes, lightning, wind and water damage.
 - 6. Failure caused by reasons unpredictable by scientific technology standards at time of shipment from Mitsubishi.7. Any other failure found to not be the responsibility of Mitsubishi or that admitted not to be so by the user.

2. Onerous repair term after discontinuation of production

- (1) Mitsubishi shall accept onerous product repairs for seven (7) years after production of the product is discontinued. Discontinuation of production shall be notified with Mitsubishi Technical Bulletins, etc.
- (2) Product supply (including repair parts) is not available after production is discontinued.

3. Overseas service

Overseas, repairs shall be accepted by Mitsubishi's local overseas FA Center. Note that the repair conditions at each FA Center may differ.

4. Exclusion of loss in opportunity and secondary loss from warranty liability

Regardless of the gratis warranty term, Mitsubishi shall not be liable for compensation to damages caused by any cause found not to be the responsibility of Mitsubishi, loss in opportunity, lost profits incurred to the user by Failures of Mitsubishi products, special damages and secondary damages whether foreseeable or not, compensation for damages to products other than Mitsubishi products, replacement by the user, maintenance of on-site equipment, start-up test run and other tasks.

5. Changes in product specifications

The specifications given in the catalogs, manuals or technical documents are subject to change without prior notice.

Microsoft, Windows, Windows NT, and Windows Vista are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and other countries.

Pentium is a trademark of Intel Corporation in the United States and other countries.

Ethernet is a trademark of Xerox Corporation.

All other company names and product names used in this manual are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

MELSEC-L LD77MH Simple Motion Module Quick Start Guide

Precautions before use

This publication explains the typical features and functions of the products herein and does not provide restrictions and other information related to usage and module combinations. Before using the products, always read the product user manuals. Mitsubishi Electric will not be held liable for damage caused by factors found not to be the cause of Mitsubishi Electric; opportunity loss or lost profits caused by faults in Mitsubishi Electric products; damage, secondary damage, or accident compensation, whether foreseeable or not, caused by special factors; damage to products other than Mitsubishi Electric products; and to other duties.

🚹 For safe use

- To use the products given in this publication properly, always read the relevant manuals before use.
- The products have been manufactured as general-purpose parts for general industries, and have not been designed or manufactured to be incorporated in a device or system used in purposes related to human life.
- Before using the products for special purposes such as nuclear power, electric power, aerospace, medicine or passenger movement vehicles, consult with Mitsubishi.
- The products have been manufactured under strict quality control. However, when
 installing the products where major accidents or losses could occur if the products fail,
 install appropriate backup or fail-safe functions in the system.



HEAD OFFICE: TOKYO BUILDING, 2-7-3, MARUNOUCHI, CHIYODA-KU, TOKYO 100-8310, JAPAN NAGOYA WORKS: 1-14, YADA-MINAMI 5, HIGASHI-KU, NAGOYA, JAPAN

> When exported from Japan, this manual does not require application to the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry for service transaction permission.